
1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Public Comment

5. Consent Agenda

A. Consideration and Action to Approve the Minutes of the September 25, 2023
Regular Session of the City of Bloomington Township Board Meeting, as requested
by the Township Clerk . (Recommended Motion: The proposed Minutes be
approved.)

B. Consideration and Action to Certify the September 2023 Statement of Funds for
the General Town Administration Fund, General Assistance Fund, and Cemetery
Fund, as requested by the Township Supervisor . (Recommended Motion: The
September 2023 Statement of Funds be certified.)

C. Consideration and Action to Approve the October 23, 2023 General Town Fund
Request for Payment, as requested by the Township Supervisor . (Recommended
Motion: The October 23, 2023 Request for Payment be approved.)

6. Regular Agenda

A. Report on Change Order #6 for the COBT Office Renovation Project, as requested
by the Township Supervisor . (Recommended Motion: None; for communication
purposes only.)

B. Report on Township as the Victim of Check Washing Fraud, as requested by the
Township Supervisor . (Recommended Motion: None; for communication purposes
only.)

BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR THE TOWN OF THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON
GOVERNMENT CENTER BOARDROOM, 4TH FLOOR, ROOM #400

115 E. WASHINGTON STREET, BLOOMINGTON, IL 61701
MONDAY, OCTOBER 23, 2023, 5:30 PM

 

 

 

 Individuals wishing to provide emailed public comment must email comments to
publiccomment@cityblm.org at least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting.
Individuals wishing to speak in-person may register at cityblm.org/register at least 5
minutes before the start of the meeting.

 Items listed on the Consent Agenda are approved with one motion; Items pulled from
the Consent Agenda for discussion are listed and voted on separately.

 

 

 

 

 

1

https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityblm/f3f5b6f35bbf529d2469ef3261b5185c0.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityblm/17a91a233a4250a2dcf8d58ca7cd15b00.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityblm/99c93b5089b703c997123687660eea3e0.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityblm/83150b5ae87549fc892e2e43e3ac14220.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityblm/c6bff031feb7b326aec138f883a97eb80.pdf


C. Consideration and Action to Approve the Estimated Fiscal Year 2024 Tax Levy for
Tax Year 2023, as requested by the Township Supervisor . (Recommended Motion:
The Estimated Fiscal Year 2024 Tax Levy for Tax Year 2023 of $2,351,600 be
approved.)

7. Reports by Elected Officials

A. Presentation and Discussion of the Township Supervisor's Report, as requested by
the City of Bloomington Township . (Recommended Motion: None; presentation
only.)

B. Presentation and Discussion of the Township Assessor's Report, as requested by the
City of Bloomington Township . (Recommended Motion: None; presentation only.)

8. Adjournment

 

 

 

 

 

Individuals with disabilities planning to attend the meeting who require reasonable
accommodations to observe and/or participate, or who have questions about the
accessibility of the meeting, should contact the City’s ADA Coordinator at 309-434-2468 or
mhurt@cityblm.org.

2

https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityblm/ce48e103136e8f71038ebdf182d864630.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityblm/0540df83c8980c010da3de9a2c8e63170.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityblm/fff42388b7c36e07b894f07f7ff7ff180.pdf
matilto:mhurt@cityblm.org


 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.A.

FOR CITY OF BLOOMINGTON TOWNSHIP: October 23, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: Town of the City of Bloomington

SUBJECT: Consideration and Action to Approve the Minutes of the September 25, 2023
Regular Session of the City of Bloomington Township Board Meeting

RECOMMENDED MOTION: The proposed Minutes be approved

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: In compliance with the Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2.06(b), minutes must
be approved within thirty days after the meeting or at the second subsequent regular
meeting, whichever is later.  the minutes of the meeting provided have been reviewed and
certified as correct and complete the the township Clerk and have been made available for
public inspection and posted to the Township's website, pending Board approval.

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Debbie Stilwell

ATTACHMENTS:
5A 20230925 TWP Minutes - Draft.pdf

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2236298/5A_20230925_TWP_Minutes_-_Draft.pdf


 

MINUTES 
REGULAR TOWNSHIP MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2023, 5:30 P.M. 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
TOWNSHIP - REGULAR SESSION 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2023, 5:30 PM 

The Board of Trustees for the Town of the City of Bloomington convened in regular 
session in the Bloomington Center for Performing Arts Auditorium at 5:30 P.M., Monday, 
September 25, 2023. The meeting was called to order by Trustee Mwilambwe who led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

Roll Call  
Attendee Name Title Status 

Mboka Mwilambwe Trustee, Chair Present 

Jenna Kearns Trustee Present 

Donna Boelen Trustee Present 

Sheila Montney Trustee Present 

Nick Becker Trustee Present 

John Danenberger Trustee Present 

Cody Hendricks Trustee Present 

Mollie Ward Trustee Present 

Kent Lee Trustee Present 

Tom Crumpler Trustee Present 

Elected Officials / Staff Present: Deborah L. Skillrud, Township Supervisor; Steve Scudder, 
Township Assessor; and Leslie Smith-Yocum, Township Clerk. 

Public Comment 

No public comment was received. 

Consent Agenda 

Items listed on the Consent Agenda are approved with one motion; Items pulled from the 
Consent Agenda for discussion are listed and voted on separately. 

Board Member Hendricks made a motion, seconded by Board Member Boelen, to 
approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Trustee Mwilambwe directed the Clerk to call roll: 

AYES: Kearns; Boelen; Montney; Becker; Danenberger; Hendricks; Ward; Lee; 
Crumpler; Mwilambwe 

Motion carried. 

Item 5.A. Consideration and Action to Approve the Minutes of the August 28, 2023, Regular 
Session of the City of Bloomington Township Board Meeting, as requested by the Township 
Clerk. 

4



 

MINUTES 
REGULAR TOWNSHIP MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 2023, 5:30 P.M. 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Item 5.B. Consideration and Action to Certify the August 2023 Statement of Funds for the 
General Town Administration Fund, General Assistance Fund, and Cemetery Fund, as 

requested by the Township Supervisor. 

Item 5.C. Consideration and Action to Approve the September 25, 2023 General Town 

Fund Request for Payments, as requested by the Township Supervisor. 

Regular Agenda 

The following item was presented: 

Item 6.A. Report on Change Orders #3-#5 for the COBT Office Renovation Project, as 
requested by the Township Supervisor. 

Deb Skillrud, Township Supervisor, explained the Change Orders were for minor changes 

including additional concrete and a failed fan motor for the roof for a total impact of $2,790. 

Reports by Elected Officials 

The following item was presented: 

Item 7.A. Presentation and Discussion of the Township Supervisor's Report, as requested 
by the City of Bloomington Township. 

Supervisor Skillrud reported that the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program 
(LIHEAP) through the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity restarted 
their program so any residents who applied for assistance with their utility bill would be 
directed to them first as Township was the payer of last resort. She provided an update on the 
Promoting Others to Succeed (POTS) program and the need to select a new collection site as 
one of their current sponsors, Owens Nursery & Florist, will be closing their retail store and 
garden center at the end of the year. 

The following item was presented: 

Item 7.B. Presentation and Discussion of the Township Assessor's Report, as requested by 
the City of Bloomington Township. 

Steve Scudder, Township Assessor, updated the Board on the recruiting and training 
efforts. He discussed a slight delay on reporting assessments to McLean County due to various 
reasons including a technology issue. He also reported that one Township vehicle is quite old 
and will need to be replaced in the near future as it was nearing the end of its life cycle. 

Adjournment 

Board Member Boelen made a motion, seconded by Board Member Ward, to adjourn 
the meeting. 

Trustee Mwilambwe directed the Clerk to call roll: 

AYES: Kearns; Boelen; Montney; Becker; Danenberger; Hendricks; Ward; Lee; 
Crumpler; Mwilambwe 

Motion carried (viva voce). 
 

The Meeting Adjourned at 5:36 P.M.  ATTEST 

 __________________________________ 

 Amanda Stutsman, Deputy Township Clerk 

5



 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.B.

FOR CITY OF BLOOMINGTON TOWNSHIP: October 23, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: Town of the City of Bloomington

SUBJECT: Consideration and Action to Certify the September 2023 Statement of Funds for
the General Town Administration Fund, General Assistance Fund, and Cemetery Fund

RECOMMENDED MOTION: The September 2023 Statement of Funds be certified

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: Pursuant to Illinois Statute 60 ILCS 1/80-15, the Township Board of Trustees
shall examine and certify the accounts of the Supervisor for all money received and
distributed by them, including all expenses necessarily incurred for the use and benefit of
the Township as well as for General Assistance.

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Debbie Stilwell

ATTACHMENTS:
5BC 20230930 COBT Financial Audit & 20231023 Payment Request.pdf

6

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2239429/5BC_20230930_COBT_Financial_Audit___20231023_Payment_Request.pdf


Board of Trustees of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean
County, Illinois

I, the TOWN CLERK of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean County, Illinois, do hereby attest that the payouts certified and submitted
by the TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR have been made from the Township Treasury AND do hereby certify that the above actions taken by the
BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Town of the City of Bloomington, have approved the Statement of Funds at a regularly constituted meeting of the
TOWNSHIP BOARD.  I shall retain a copy of this documentation and shall forward the same to the TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR.

Town Clerk

Subscribed and sworn to before me this  23rd day of October 2023.

Supervisor of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean County, 
Illinois. Notary Public

WARD 5:  Nick Becker Trustee Mboka Mwilambwe

WARD 4:  John W Danenberger WARD 9:  Tom Crumpler

WARD 3:  Sheila Montney WARD 8:  Kent Lee

COUNTY OF McLEAN)

OFFICE OF THE TOWN SUPERVISOR--GENERAL TOWN ADMINISTRATION FUND

The following is a statement by DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, SUPERVISOR of the TOWN OF THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON in the County and
State aforesaid, of the amount of public funds received and expended by her during the period just closed, ending on the 30th day of September
2023, showing the amount of public funds on hand at the commencement of said period, the amount of public funds received and from what source
received, and the amount of public funds expended and for what purpose expended during said period ending as aforesaid.

The said DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, being duly sworn, doth depose and say that the following statement by her subscribed is a correct statement
of the amount of public funds on hand at the commencement of the period above stated, the amount of public funds received and the sources from
which received, and the amount expended and the purpose for which expended as set forth in said statement.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS--SUPERVISOR
ALL ACCOUNTS

McLEAN COUNTY, BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
STATE OF ILLINOIS)

)SS Town of the City of Bloomington

WARD 2:  Donna Boelen WARD 7:  Mary "Mollie" Ward

     This 23rd day of October 2023.

WE, the undersigned BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the TOWN OF THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, do hereby certify that we have this day
examined the foregoing and annexed account of DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, SUPERVISOR of GENERAL TOWN ADMINISTRATION FUND, and
find the same in all respects true and correct and that there appears to be a balance of $3,608,382.73 in ILLINOIS FUNDS in SPRINGFIELD,
ILLINOIS, $100,842.34 in PRAIRIE STATE BANK & TRUST (53) in BLOOMINGTON, McLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS, $35.00 in PRAIRIE STATE
BANK & TRUST (30) in BLOOMINGTON, McLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS, and a balance of $1,021,162.17 in PRAIRIE STATE BANK & TRUST
(64) in BLOOMINGTON, McLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS, constituting the GENERAL TOWN ADMINISTRATION FUND of said TOWN.

WARD 1:  Jenna L Kearns WARD 6:  Cody Hendricks

Page 1 of 28 7



This page was intentionally left blank.

Page 2 of 28 8



 $         15,688 
 $    3,592,110 
 $       759,870    

    $    4,367,668 

 $                19 
 $              112 
 $         16,273 
 $           2,165 
 $              215 
 $                35 
 $       411,181 

    $       429,998 
 $    4,797,667 
 $         67,245 
 $    4,730,422 

 $       100,842 
 $                35 
 $    3,608,383 
 $    1,021,162 

 $    4,730,422 

 $         15,688    

Deposits  $                19 
 $           2,165 
 $              215 
 $       150,000 

 $       152,398    
 $       168,087 

 $           1,672 
 $         13,588 
 $        (46,103)
 $         93,899 
 $           2,019 
 $           2,169 

 $         67,245 
 $         67,245 
 $       100,842 

 $       149,338 
 $        (48,495)

 $       100,842 

Interest: Prairie State Bank (64)
Interest: Illinois Funds (1085)

Town of the City of Bloomington--General Town Administration Fund

Month of:  SEPTEMBER
Public Funds at Commencement

Cash:  Prairie State Bank & Trust (53) Checking Balance

Tax Levy
Public Funds Received This Month

Public Funds Available

Other Income - Retiree Insurance
Other Income - GA Administration (53)

Investments:  Illinois Fund
Investments:  Prairie State Bank & Trust (64)

Public Funds at Commencement
Public Funds Received This Month

Interest: Prairie State Bank (53)

Other Income - GA Administration (30)

Prairie State Bank & Trust (53) Balance at Commencement
 

Interest:  Prairie State Bank & Trust (53)
Other Income - Retiree Insurance

Investments:  Illinois Fund
Investments:  Prairie State Bank & Trust (64)

TOTAL Public Funds at Month End

 Checking Account Activity

Public Funds Expended This Month
TOTAL Public Funds at Month End

Public Funds at Month End
Cash:  Prairie State Bank & Trust (53) Checking Balance
Cash:  Prairie State Bank & Trust (30) Checking Balance

Compensation & Benefits
Services & Expenses
Supervisor's Office Expenses
          Total Checks Written

          Total Deposits for Month
Total Funds Available

Checks Written
Assessor's Office Expenses
Community Agency Funding
Capital Fund Reserve

Other Income - GA Administration (53)
Transfer from Prairie State Bank & Trust Reserve (64)

Less Outstanding Checks 
Checkbook Balance per Reconciliation

Total Checks Written
Prairie State Bank & Trust (53) Balance at Month End

Prairie State Bank & Trust (53) Reconciliation at Month End
Balance per Bank Statement

Page 3 of 28 9



7000  $         16,403 
7400  $           2,415 
7800  $       411,181 

 $       429,998 
 $       429,998 

9141  $              286 
9171  $              674 
9201  $              100 
9271  $              300 
9291  $              175 
9301  $              137 

 $           1,672 

10215  $         11,831 
1025  $           1,757 

 $         13,588 

7011  $           7,833 
7021  $           8,000 
7031  $              200 
7041  $              580 
7051  $         28,738 
7061  $         30,446 
7081  $           3,649 
7091  $           5,512 
7101  $           8,711 
7111  $              229 

 $         93,899 

1030  $           1,178 
1035  $                85 
1040  $              449 
1042  $              306 

 $           2,019 

  $        (46,103)
 $        (46,103)

8121  $              219 
8131  $           1,010 
8181  $              292 
8191  $              524 
8211  $                50 
8221  $                59 
8241  $                15 

 $           2,169 

 $         67,245 

 $       362,754 

Revenue Sep-23
Interest
Other Income

Town of the City of Bloomington--General Town Administration Fund

Statement of Receipts and Disbursements

Appraisal Services
Janitorial

Utilities
Office Supplies

Tax Levy
Total Revenue

Total Income
Expense
     Assessor's Office

Rent/Debt Service

     Compensation (Salaries) & Benefits
TWP Supervisor
TWP Assessor
Town Clerk
Town Trustees
General Assistance Staff

GA Client Services
Total Community Agency Funding

Computer Services
Total Assessor's Office

     Community Agency Funding
HERE - Housing Eviction Relief Effort

Building Maintenance
Janitorial Services & Supplies

     Services & Expenses
Legal Expense
Publishing

Deputy Assessors
IMRF/Employer (2023 = 5.43%)
FICA (SS/MC)/Employer
Group Medical/Employer
State Unemployment/Employer

Total Compensation (Salaries) & Benefits

Equipment Repair/Rental
Office Supplies

     Supervisor's Office
Janitorial
Utilities 

Total Services & Expenses
     Capital Fund Reserve

Township Building Improvements
Total Capital Fund Reserve

Total Expense

Net Income

Publications  
Computer/Contract Services
Membership Dues

Total Supervisor's Office

Page 4 of 28 10



Sep-23 $ Over Budget % of Budget

7000  $                91,595  $       100,000  $          (8,405) 91.6%
7400  $                14,780  $         40,000  $        (25,220) 36.9%

 $                         -  $           5,000  $          (5,000) 0.0%
 $                     960  $           2,000  $          (1,040) 48.0%

7450  $                         -  $                25  $               (25) 0.0%
7600  $              222,538  $       400,000  $      (177,462) 55.6%
7800  $           1,599,635  $    1,645,000  $        (45,365) 97.2%

      Total Revenue  $           1,929,508  $    2,192,025  $      (262,517) 88.0%
 $           1,929,508  $    2,192,025  $      (262,517) 88.0%

9141  $                         -  $         11,544  $        (11,544) 0.0%
9151  $                  1,285  $           5,000  $          (3,715) 25.7%
9161  $                  1,055  $           3,000  $          (1,945) 35.2%
9171  $                  3,313  $           5,800  $          (2,487) 57.1%
9191  $                         -  $              300  $             (300) 0.0%
9201  $                     517  $           2,000  $          (1,483) 25.8%
9211  $                         -  $              500  $             (500) 0.0%
9231  $                  2,174  $           6,000  $          (3,826) 36.2%
9241  $                         -  $           1,500  $          (1,500) 0.0%
9251  $                  2,022  $         17,000  $        (14,978) 11.9%
9261  $                         -  $           9,000  $          (9,000) 0.0%
9271  $                  3,120  $         34,000  $        (30,880) 9.2%
9291  $                  1,050  $           2,000  $             (950) 52.5%
9301  $                  2,910  $         20,000  $        (17,090) 14.6%
9311  $                  4,680  $         30,000  $        (25,320) 15.6%
9312  $                         -  $           2,500  $          (2,500) 0.0%

 $                22,126  $       150,144  $      (128,018) 14.7%

10215  $                88,172  $       150,000  $        (61,828) 58.8%
1023  $                15,000  $         25,000  $        (10,000) 60.0%
1025  $                  9,040  $         50,000  $        (40,960) 18.1%
1026  $                         -  $         35,000  $        (35,000) 0.0%
1027  $                20,000  $         80,000  $        (60,000) 25.0%

 $              132,212  $       340,000  $      (207,788) 38.9%

7011  $                47,000  $         94,000  $        (47,000) 50.0%
7021  $                48,000  $         96,000  $        (48,000) 50.0%
7031  $                  1,200  $           2,500  $          (1,300) 48.0%
7041  $                  1,100  $           2,800  $          (1,700) 39.3%
7051  $              168,950  $       400,000  $      (231,050) 42.2%
7061  $              137,880  $       404,000  $      (266,120) 34.1%
7081  $                19,612  $         80,000  $        (60,388) 24.5%
7091  $                29,381  $         76,446  $        (47,065) 38.4%
7101  $                46,081  $       130,000  $        (83,919) 35.4%
7111  $                     417  $           2,500  $          (2,083) 16.7%

 $              499,621  $    1,288,246  $      (788,625) 38.8%     Total Compensation & Benefits

General Assistance Staff
Deputy Assessors
IMRF/Employer (2023 = 5.43%)
FICA (SS/MC)/Employer
Group Medical/Employer
State Unemployment/Employer

     Total Community Agency Funding
     Compensation & Benefits

TWP Supervisor
TWP Assessor
Town Clerk
Town Trustees

     Community Agency Funding
Housing Eviction Relief Effort (HERE)
Community Medical
GA Workfare Development/Client Services
Youth Services
Senior Services

Appraisal Services
Janitorial
Computer Services
Mapping/GIS Services
Membership Dues/Assessor's Staff

     Total Assessor's Office

Office Supplies
Publications & Printing
Equipment
Equipment Repair/Rental
Education/Meetings/Conferences
Replatting & Remapping

     Assessor's Office
Rent/Debt Service
Auto Expense
Telephone
Utilities
Postage

Personal Property Replacement Tax
Tax Levy

Total Income

Expense

     Revenue
Interest
Other Income
Other Income: Grants
Other Income: TWP IGAs
Township Litigation Income

Town of the City of Bloomington--General Town Administration Fund

Year to Date Budget Comparison FY2024 
AMENDED 

BudgetIncome

Page 5 of 28 11



Sep-23 $ Over Budget % of Budget
1028  $                  1,686  $           2,000  $             (314) 84.3%
1029  $                         -  $           7,500  $          (7,500) 0.0%
1030  $                  3,268  $         12,000  $          (8,732) 27.2%
1034  $                11,980  $         13,000  $          (1,020) 92.2%
1035  $                     206  $           2,500  $          (2,294) 8.3%
1038  $                  1,971  $           7,500  $          (5,529) 26.3%
1039  $                         -  $           1,000  $          (1,000) 0.0%
1040  $                  2,118  $         20,000  $        (17,882) 10.6%
1042  $                  1,892  $           6,000  $          (4,108) 31.5%
1043  $                         -  $           2,500  $          (2,500) 0.0%
1044  $                         -  $       131,791  $      (131,791) 0.0%
1044  $                         -  $         50,000  $        (50,000) 0.0%
1045  $                25,587  $         75,000  $        (49,414) 34.1%
1045  $                         -  $         90,000  $        (90,000) 0.0%
1045  $                         -  $         25,000  $        (25,000) 0.0%

 $                48,709  $       445,791  $      (397,082) 10.9%

 $                         -  $       409,729  $      (409,729) 0.0%
 $                         -  $       908,179  $      (908,179) 0.0%
 $                         -  $                  1  $                 (1) 0.0%
 $                         -  $    1,317,909  $   (1,317,909) 0.0%

8091  $                         -  $           3,000  $          (3,000) 0.0%
8101  $                         -  $         20,000  $        (20,000) 0.0%
8121  $                  1,313  $           3,500  $          (2,188) 37.5%
8131  $                  4,969  $         10,000  $          (5,031) 49.7%
8141  $                  1,875  $           5,000  $          (3,125) 37.5%
8151  $                         -  $           3,500  $          (3,500) 0.0%
8161  $                  1,571  $           4,000  $          (2,429) 39.3%
8171  $                         -  $         57,000  $        (57,000) 0.0%
8181  $                  1,664  $           6,000  $          (4,336) 27.7%
8191  $                  1,180  $           6,000  $          (4,820) 19.7%
8201  $                         -  $           3,000  $          (3,000) 0.0%
8211  $                       50  $           1,000  $             (950) 5.0%
8221  $                     510  $         25,000  $        (24,490) 2.0%
8241  $                       15  $              450  $             (435) 3.3%

 $                13,147  $       147,450  $      (134,303) 8.9%

9000  $                         -  $       200,000  $      (200,000) 0.0%
 $                         -  $       200,000  $      (200,000) 0.0%

 Total Expense  $              715,815  $    3,889,540  $   (3,173,725) 18.4%

 $           1,213,693  $   (1,697,515)  $    2,911,208 Net Income

     Total Supervisor's Office
Emergency Transfer of Funds

GT Funds Transferred to GA Fund
     Total Emergency Transfer of Funds

Equipment Repair/Rental
Office Supplies
Printing
Publications
Computer/Contract Services
Membership Dues

Janitorial
Utilities
Telephones
Car Expense
Education/Conference/Meetings
Equipment

Township Building Improvements #2
Program Facility

     Total Capital Fund Reserve
     Supervisor's Office

Postage
Rent/Debt Service

Special Projects #1
Special Projects #2
Special Projects #3: Decennial

     Total Services & Expenses
Capital Fund Reserve

Township Building Improvements #1

Debt Service: Principle & Interest
Building Maintenance
Janitorial Services & Supplies
Building Security
Building Repairs #1
Building Repairs #2

Membership Dues
Auditing Expense
Legal Expense
Insurance
Publishing
Other Expenditures

Town of the City of Bloomington--General Town Administration Fund

Year to Date Budget Comparison (cont.) FY2024 
AMENDED 
BUDGET     Services & Expenses

Page 6 of 28 12



Date Number Name Amount
0502 · Prairie State Bank & Trust (53)

09/05/2023 10023 Soaring Eagle Cleaning Services LLC -700.00
09/06/2023 7317 Empire TWP 75.00
09/06/2023 Transfer Prairie State Bank & Trust 150,000.00
09/06/2023 EFT EFT-Valutec Card Solutions -58.92
09/06/2023 10024 Sanatan Properties LLC %Core 3 -207.50
09/06/2023 10025 Scudder, Richard T -233.84
09/06/2023 10026 CDS Office Technologies -96.80
09/06/2023 10027 NICOR Gas -150.75
09/06/2023 10028 Hermes Service & Sales Inc -243.20
09/06/2023 10029 Bowman, Danny -300.00
09/06/2023 10030 American Pest Control Inc -37.00
09/12/2023 4911 Danvers TWP 35.00
09/12/2023 10031 Pantagraph; Lee Enterprises - Central Ill -85.32
09/12/2023 10032 Ameren Illinois -493.24
09/12/2023 10033 Hunt, Erika L dba A-List Prop %AB Rentals -584.00
09/15/2023 20230915 EFT-Payroll -26,648.47
09/15/2023 15542953 EFT-Federal Tax Deposit -9,368.69
09/15/2023 0481308112 EFT-IL Tax Deposit -1,736.48
09/15/2023 EFT Prairie State Bank & Trust -440.01
09/15/2023 EFT TASC (Total Administrative Services Corp) -401.24
09/19/2023 10034 Ace Industrial Properties Inc dba 1900E C -1,000.00
09/19/2023 10035 Huck's/WEX Bank -79.38
09/19/2023 10036 U-Haul -253.19
09/19/2023 10037 Quill Corporation -524.39
09/19/2023 10038 NICOR Gas -512.86
09/19/2023 10039 Seggebruch, Marlin C Irrevocable Trust -1,065.00
09/19/2023 10040 Traditions Essential Housing Impact Ptnrs -818.98
09/19/2023 10041 Ameren Illinois -180.49
09/19/2023 10042 NICOR Gas -292.04
09/19/2023 10043 City of Bloomington Water Dept -470.35
09/19/2023 10044 Township Perspective -50.00
09/19/2023 10045 City of Bloomington Finance Dept -52.42
09/20/2023 3505 Bloomington TWP 35.00
09/20/2023 3506 Bloomington TWP 35.00
09/26/2023 3508 Bloomington TWP 35.00
09/26/2023 10046 VISA (DLS) -588.14
09/26/2023 10047 Star Cleaners -20.00
09/26/2023 10048 Ireland, Michael W -99.99
09/26/2023 10049 VISA (SRS) -137.01
09/26/2023 10050 NCPERS Group Life Ins -64.00
09/26/2023 10051 City of Bloomington Health Insurance -15,687.43
09/26/2023 10052 Kurt LLC %Class Act Realty -575.00
09/26/2023 10053 CRE Elm Point Apartments LLC -2,583.00
09/26/2023 10054 Ameren Illinois -984.18
09/26/2023 10055 Ernst, Linda S -910.00
09/26/2023 10056 Mescher Rinehart & Redlingshafer PC -1,178.00
09/26/2023 10057 LC Boston Holdings LLC -2,625.00
09/26/2023 10058 CDS Leasing -195.00
09/26/2023 10059 Ameren Illinois -1,062.67
09/26/2023 42545 Town of the City of Bloomington - CEM 7,672.17
09/26/2023 9981 Fraud Reversal Prairie State Bank & Trust 46,102.50
09/29/2023 20230930 EFT-Payroll -24,401.59
09/29/2023 14531925 EFT-Federal Tax Deposit -8,541.22
09/29/2023 1956249040 EFT-IL Tax Deposit -1,612.90
09/29/2023 EFT Prairie State Bank & Trust -440.01
09/29/2023 EFT TASC (Total Administrative Services Corp) -401.24
09/29/2023 50908 EFT-IMRF -11,598.96
09/29/2023 2092368688 IDES--IL Dept of Employment Security -229.31
09/30/2023 09975862568 IMRF - Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 2,164.73
09/29/2023 Credit Interest 18.69

Total 85,153.88

Town of the City of Bloomington--General Town Administration Fund
Checking Account Activity

Page 7 of 28 13



This page was intentionally left blank.

Page 8 of 28 14



Board of Trustees of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean
County, Illinois

I, the TOWN CLERK of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean County, Illinois, do hereby attest that the payouts certified and submitted
by the TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR have been made from the Township Treasury AND do hereby certify that the above actions taken by the
BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Town of the City of Bloomington, have approved the Statement of Funds at a regularly constituted meeting of the
TOWNSHIP BOARD.  I shall retain a copy of this documentation and shall forward the same to the TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR.

Town Clerk

WARD 4:  John W Danenberger WARD 9:  Tom Crumpler

WARD 5:  Nick Becker Trustee Mboka Mwilambwe

WARD 2:  Donna Boelen WARD 7:  Mary "Mollie" Ward

WARD 3:  Sheila Montney WARD 8:  Kent Lee

     This 23rd day of October 2023.

WE, the undersigned BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the TOWN OF THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, do hereby certify that we have this day
examined the foregoing and annexed account of DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, SUPERVISOR of GENERAL ASSISTANCE FUND, and find the same
in all respects true and correct and that there appears to be a balance of $412,153.92 in ILLINOIS FUNDS (0879) in SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS,
$17,013.31 in PRAIRIE STATE BANK & TRUST (00) in BLOOMINGTON, McLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS, and a balance of $186,647.22 in
PRAIRIE STATE BANK & TRUST (19) in BLOOMINGTON, McLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS, constituting the GENERAL ASSISTANCE FUND of said
TOWN.

WARD 1:  Jenna L Kearns WARD 6:  Cody Hendricks

OFFICE OF THE TOWN SUPERVISOR--GENERAL ASSISTANCE FUND

The following is a statement by DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, SUPERVISOR of the TOWN OF THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON in the County and
State aforesaid, of the amount of public funds received and expended by her during the period just closed, ending on the 30th day of September
2023, showing the amount of public funds on hand at the commencement of said period, the amount of public funds received and from what source
received, and the amount of public funds expended and for what purpose expended during said period ending as aforesaid.

The said DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, being duly sworn, doth depose and say that the following statement by her subscribed is a correct statement
of the amount of public funds on hand at the commencement of the period above stated, the amount of public funds received and the sources from
which received, and the amount expended and the purpose for which expended as set forth in said statement.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this  23rd day of October 2023.

Supervisor of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean County, 
Illinois. Notary Public

McLEAN COUNTY, BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS
STATE OF ILLINOIS)

)SS Town of the City of Bloomington
COUNTY OF McLEAN)

STATEMENT OF FUNDS--SUPERVISOR
ALL ACCOUNTS

Page 9 of 28 15



This page was intentionally left blank.

Page 10 of 28 16



 
 $         44,973 
 $       410,295 
 $       136,610    

    $       591,879 

 $                  6 
 $                22 
 $           1,859 
 $         50,015 

    $         51,901 
 $       643,780 

 $         27,966 
 $       615,814 

 $         17,013 
 $       412,154 
 $       186,647 

 $       615,814 

 $         44,973    

 $                  6 
  $                  6    

 $         44,979 
 $         27,966 
 $         17,013 

 $         27,259 
 $        (10,246)

 $         17,013 

Balance per Bank Statement
Less Outstanding Checks 

Checkbook Balance per Reconciliation

          Total Deposits for Month
Total Funds Available

Checks Written: General Assistance
Checkbook Balance at Month End

Prairie State Bank & Trust (00) Reconciliation at Month End

Deposits:
Interest:  Prairie State Bank & Trust (00)

TOTAL Public Funds at Month End

 Checking Account Activity
Checkbook Balance at Commencement

TOTAL Public Funds at Month End

Public Funds at Month End
Cash:  Prairie State Bank & Trust (00) Checking Balance
Investments:  Illinois Fund (0879)
Investments:  Prairie State Bank & Trust (19)

Tax Levy
Public Funds Received This Month

Public Funds Available

Public Funds Expended This Month

Interest: Prairie State Bank (19)
Interest: Illinois Fund (0879)

Investments:  Illinois Fund
Investments:  Prairie State Bank & Trust (19)

Public Funds at Commencement

Public Funds Received This Month
Interest: Prairie State Bank (00)

Town of the City of Bloomington--General Assistance Fund

Month of:  SEPTEMBER

Public Funds at Commencement
Cash:  Prairie State Bank & Trust (00) Checking Balance

Page 11 of 28 17



7000  $           1,886 
7800  $         50,015 

 $         51,901 
 $         51,901 

6011  $           3,948 
6021  $           5,082 
6051  $           1,549 
6071  $         17,223 
6101  $              114 
6121  $                50 

 $         27,966 
 $         27,966 

 Net Income  $         23,935 

Sep-23 Amended $ Over Budget % of Budget

7000  $                10,802  $         21,000  $        (10,198) 51.4%
7400  $                         -  $                10  $               (10) 0.0%
7600  $                27,069  $         45,000  $        (17,931) 60.2%
7700  $                15,064  $         20,000  $          (4,936) 75.3%
7800  $              194,576  $       200,000  $          (5,424) 97.3%
7900  $                         -  $       200,000  $      (200,000) 0.0%

Total Revenue  $              247,511  $       486,010  $      (238,499) 50.9%
Total Income  $              247,511  $       486,010  $      (238,499) 50.9%

6011  $                30,578  $         78,000  $        (47,422) 39.2%
6021  $                38,421  $       200,000  $      (161,579) 19.2%
6051  $                  6,087  $         50,000  $        (43,913) 12.2%
6061  $                         -  $         20,000  $        (20,000) 0.0%
6071  $              100,496  $       200,000  $        (99,504) 50.2%
6081  $                         -  $         10,000  $        (10,000) 0.0%
6091  $                  2,056  $           6,168  $          (4,112) 33.3%
6101  $                     329  $           5,000  $          (4,671) 6.6%
6121  $                     635  $         10,000  $          (9,365) 6.4%

Total CW Expense  $              178,602  $       579,168  $      (400,566) 30.8%
Total Expense  $              178,602  $       579,168  $      (400,566) 30.8%

 Net Income  $                68,910  $        (93,158)  $       162,068 

Emergency Assistance
Hospital
Funeral/Burial
Transportation
Allowances 

Expense
     CW

Groceries/Personal Essentials
Rent
Utilities
Medical

Other Income
Personal Property Replacement Tax
Refunds & Recoveries
Tax Levy
GT Fund Transferred to GA Fund

Town of the City of Bloomington--General Assistance Fund

Year to Date Budget Comparison
Income
     Revenue

Interest

Transportation
Allowances 

Total CW
Total Expense

Groceries/Personal Essentials
Rent
Utilities
Emergency Assistance

Tax Levy
Total Revenue

Total Income
Expense:  CW

Sep-23
     Revenue

Interest

Town of the City of Bloomington--General Assistance Fund

Statement of Receipts and Disbursements

Page 12 of 28 18



Date Number Amount
0501 · Prairie State Bank & Trust (00)

09/05/2023 EFT EFT-Kroger via Valutec -3,947.86
09/06/2023 37516 Sanatan Properties LLC %Core 3 -690.00
09/06/2023 37517 Ameren Illinois -387.92
09/06/2023 37518 Downtowner Apts, The -47.00
09/06/2023 37519 Thrasher, Raymond E -200.00
09/06/2023 37520 Coontz, Herbert W& IvaJ, IrrevocableTrust -345.00
09/06/2023 37521 Miller Trust, Annetta O dba Miller Prop -345.00
09/06/2023 37522 Moore Enterprises dba Grandview Estates -485.05
09/06/2023 37523 City of Bloomington Water Department -337.06
09/06/2023 37524 NICOR Gas -591.10
09/06/2023 37525 Traditions Essential Housing Impact Ptnrs -113.11
09/06/2023 37526 Star Cleaners -25.00
09/12/2023 37527 Ameren Illinois -632.79
09/12/2023 37528 City of Bloomington Water Department -552.80
09/12/2023 37529 NICOR Gas -64.65
09/12/2023 37530 Hunt, Erika & Andrew dba A-List Prop %AB -916.00
09/12/2023 37531 Dotson, Bernard & Rearn M -345.00
09/12/2023 37532 SRIM LLC %Redbird Property Mgmt Inc -345.00
09/19/2023 37533 Huck's/WEX Bank -28.48
09/19/2023 37534 VISA...2268 (GA) -85.68
09/19/2023 37535 Lakewood B LLC dba Lakewood Terrace Apts -345.00
09/19/2023 37536 Ameren Illinois -1,837.03
09/19/2023 37537 Labyrinth Outreach Services to Women -200.00
09/19/2023 37538 NICOR Gas -772.74
09/19/2023 37539 BHA; Blmgtn Housing Authority (rent) -95.00
09/19/2023 37540 Home Sweet Home Ministries, Inc -200.00
09/19/2023 37541 Salvation Army -200.00
09/19/2023 37542 City of Bloomington Water Department -847.91
09/19/2023 37543 Brady, Edward P %Brady Property Mgmt -325.00
09/19/2023 37544 Miller Trust, Annetta O dba Miller Prop -345.00
09/19/2023 37545 Moore, J A dba Maple Grove Estates -916.00
09/19/2023 37546 Ostling, Bonnie Jo dba Loft Invest %Core3 -675.00
09/19/2023 37547 Seggebruch, Marlin C Irrevocable Trust -690.00
09/19/2023 37548 Traditions Essential Housing Impact Ptnrs -916.00
09/26/2023 37549 Highland B LLC -345.00
09/26/2023 37550 M&M Real Estate Partnership LLC %Class Ac -345.00
09/26/2023 37551 BHA; Blmgtn Housing Authority (laundry) -25.00
09/26/2023 37552 Traditions Essential Housing Impact Ptnrs -2,441.00
09/20/2023 AC4497989 Treasurer, State of IL, SSI Reimbursement 3,686.00
09/26/2023 37553 Bloomington Township (GA) -3,686.00
09/26/2023 37554 Brown, Caire E -200.00
09/26/2023 37555 Ameren Illinois -1,148.71
09/26/2023 37556 CRE Elm Point Apartments LLC -1,152.00
09/26/2023 37557 Jessen, Chad & Micha dba Red Rock Prop -345.00
09/26/2023 37558 Lincoln Towers %Mid-Northern Group -129.00
09/26/2023 37559 Ernst, Linda S -690.00
09/26/2023 37560 BHA; Blmgtn Housing Authority (rent) -1,750.94
09/26/2023 37561 Moore Enterprises dba Grandview Estates -345.00
09/26/2023 37562 Labyrinth Outreach Services to Women -200.00
09/29/2023 Credit Interest 5.78

-27,960.05

Town of the City of Bloomington--General Assistance Fund
Checking Account Activity

Name

Page 13 of 28 19



This page was intentionally left blank.

Page 14 of 28 20



I, the TOWN CLERK of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean County, Illinois, do hereby attest that the payouts certified and submitted
by the TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR have been (or will be) made from the Township Treasury AND do hereby certify that the above actions taken by
the BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Town of the City of Bloomington, have approved the Statement of Funds at a regularly constituted meeting of
the TOWNSHIP BOARD.  I shall retain a copy of this documentation and shall forward the same to the TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR.

Town Clerk

WARD 5:  Nick Becker Trustee Mboka Mwilambwe

Board of Trustees of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean
County, Illinois

WARD 3:  Sheila Montney WARD 8:  Kent Lee

WARD 4:  John W Danenberger WARD 9:  Tom Crumpler

WARD 1:  Jenna L Kearns WARD 6:  Cody Hendricks

WARD 2:  Donna Boelen WARD 7:  Mary "Mollie" Ward

Cemetery Board Vice President: Board of Trustees of the Evergreen Memorial Cemetery, Town of the City of
Bloomington, McLean County, IllinoisGarrett  Thalgott

     This 23rd day of October 2023.

WE, the undersigned BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the TOWN OF THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, do hereby certify that we have this day
examined the foregoing and annexed account of DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, SUPERVISOR of CEMETERY FUND, and find the same in all respects
true and correct. 

     This 9th day of October 2023.

WE, the undersigned BOARD OF TRUSTEES of EVERGREEN MEMORIAL CEMETERY, TOWN OF THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON, do
hereby certify that we have this day examined the foregoing and annexed account of DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, SUPERVISOR of EVERGREEN
MEMORIAL CEMETERY FUND, and find the same in all respects true and correct and that there appears to be a balance of $406,991.73 in
ILLINOIS FUNDS (0905) in SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS, $42,944.43 at HEARTLAND BANK (7774), BLOOMINGTON, McLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS
and a balance of $850,303.63 at HEARTLAND BANK (7782), BLOOMINGTON, McLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS, constituting the EVERGREEN
MEMORIAL CEMETERY FUND of said TOWN.

Cemetery Board President: Secretary/Treasurer for Cemetery Board:

Joseph B Gibson Brad A Williams

OFFICE OF THE TOWN SUPERVISOR--CEMETERY FUND

The following is a statement by DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, SUPERVISOR of the TOWN OF THE CITY OF BLOOMINGTON in the County and
State aforesaid, of the amount of public funds received and expended by her during the period just closed, ending on the 30th day of September
2023, showing the amount of public funds on hand at the commencement of said period, the amount of public funds received and from what source
received, and the amount of public funds expended and for what purpose expended during said period ending as aforesaid.

The said DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, being duly sworn, doth depose and say that the following statement by her subscribed is a correct statement
of the amount of public funds on hand at the commencement of the period above stated, the amount of public funds received and the sources from
which received, and the amount expended and the purpose for which expended as set forth in said statement.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this  9th day of October 2023.

Supervisor of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean County, 
Illinois. Notary Public

ALL ACCOUNTS
McLEAN COUNTY, BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

STATE OF ILLINOIS)
)SS Town of the City of Bloomington

COUNTY OF McLEAN)

STATEMENT OF FUNDS--SUPERVISOR

Page 15 of 28 21



This page was intentionally left blank.

Page 16 of 28 22



 $         75,824 
 $       723,653 
 $       405,156 
 $         86,331 

Trust Account: Illinois Fund 0904 (O/C Trust)  $       202,578 
 $       239,795 

    $    1,733,337 

 $       126,651 

 $           8,135 
 $           7,291 
 $                70 
 $              115 
 $              600 
 $           1,835 
 $              946 
 $              150  $         19,142 

    $       145,793 
 $    1,879,130 
 $         49,841 
 $    1,829,289 

 $         42,944 
 $       850,304 
 $       406,992 
 $         85,759 

Trust Account: Illinois Fund 0904 (O/C Trust)  $       203,496 
 $       239,795 

 $    1,829,289 

 $         75,824 
 

 $           8,135 
 $           7,291 
 $                70 
 $              115 
 $              600 
 $              150 
 $              600 

 $         16,961    
 $         92,785 

 $         34,437 
 $           2,470 
 $              770 
 $         12,164 

 $         49,841 
 $         49,841 
 $         42,944 

 $         45,393 
 $                97 
 $          (2,546)

 $         42,944 

Balance per Bank Statement
Plus Outstanding Deposits
Less Outstanding Checks 

Checkbook Balance per Reconciliation

Cemetery Operations
          Total Checks Written

Total Checks Written
Checkbook Balance at Month End

Bank Reconciliation at Month End

      Total Deposits for Month
Total Funds Available

Checks Written
Compensation & Benefits
Administrative Expenses
Cemetery Improvements, Maintenance & Repair

Inspection Fees
Prepaid O/C Deposits transferred (to)/from Trust Acct 7114

Sale of Niches
Sales - Other

Opening/Closing Fees
Sale of Lots
Sale of Crypts

Trust Account:  Heartland Bank 7114 (O/C Trust & GB/S/Mc Trust)

Trust Account:  Heartland Bank 3189 (Irrevocable Trust) ~ as of 06/30/2023
TOTAL Funds at Month End

 Checking Account Activity
Checkbook Balance at Commencement

TOTAL Funds at Month End
Funds at Month End

Cash:  Heartland Bank 7774 (Checking)
Cash:  Heartland Bank 7782 (Reserve)
Cash:  Illinois Fund 0905 (Reserve)

Inspection Fees
Total Funds Received This Month

Total Funds Available
Funds Expended This Month

Sale of Niches
Sales - Other
Interest: Checking/Reserve
Income from Trusts

Other Funds Received This Month
Opening/Closing Fees
Sale of Lots
Sale of Crypts

Cash:  Illinois Fund 0905 (Reserve)
Trust Account:  Heartland Bank 7114 (O/C Trust & GB/S/Mc Trust)

Trust Account:  Heartland Bank 3189 (Irrevocable Trust) ~ as of 06/30/2023
Funds at Commencement

Public Funds Received This Month
Real Estate Tax Levy

Town of the City of Bloomington--Cemetery Fund

Month of:  SEPTEMBER
Funds at Commencement

Cash:  Heartland Bank 7774 (Checking)
Cash:  Heartland Bank 7782 (Reserve)

Page 17 of 28 23



40100 126,651$        
42000  $           8,135 
42500  $           7,291 
43000  $                70 
43100  $              115 
44900  $              600 
43500  $           1,835 
49000  $              946 
49021  $              150 

 $       145,793 
 $       145,793 

50101  $           4,540 
50102  $         22,267 
50201  $           1,931 
50202  $           1,456 
50203  $              887 
50204  $           3,357 

 $         34,437 

52500  $           1,752 
55400  $              440 
55450  $              278 

 $           2,470 

57800  $              770 
                             Total Cemetery Improvements, Maintenance & Repair  $              770 

55500  $           1,886 
56600  $              104 
56800  $              240 
57602  $           8,222 
58100  $           1,680 
59900  $                32 

 $         12,164 
 $         49,841 
 $         95,952 

Grave Markers
Other Cemetery Expenses

Total Cemetery Operations
Total Expense

Net Income

Cemetery Supplies & Maintenance
Disposal of Leaves/Branches
Grounds Maintenance/Repair

Cemetery Operations
Fuel, Oil and Equipment

Total Administrative Expenses
Cemetery Improvements, Maintenance & Repair

Operating Equipment

Special Event Expenses
Other Admin Expenses

Administrative Expenses
Utilities

IMRF/Employer (2023 = 5.43%)
IDES - Unemployment Insurance
Employee Health Insurance

Total Compensation & Benefits

Total Income
Expense
Compensation & Benefits

Wages: Administrative Staff
Wages: Cemetery Staff
Payroll Taxes

Interest: Checking/Reserve
Income from Trusts
Inspection Fees

Total Revenue

Sale of Lots
Sale of Crypts
Sale of Niches
Sales - Other

Revenue Sep-23
Real Estate Tax Levy
Opening/Closing Fee

Town of the City of Bloomington--Cemetery Fund

Statement of Receipts and Disbursements

Page 18 of 28 24



$ Over Budget % of Budget

40100  $              492,716  $       506,600  $        (13,884) 97.3%
41000  $                68,546  $         80,000  $        (11,454) 85.7%
42000  $                49,830  $         90,000  $        (40,170) 55.4%
42100  $                  4,790  $           9,000  $          (4,210) 53.2%
42500  $                38,593  $         70,000  $        (31,407) 55.1%
43000  $                  2,870  $         11,000  $          (8,130) 26.1%
43100  $                16,060  $         48,000  $        (31,940) 33.5%
44700  $                         -  $              500  $             (500) 0.0%
44850  $                         -  $              700  $             (700) 0.0%
42400  $                     640  $           1,500  $             (860) 42.7%
43500  $                  7,435  $              600  $           6,835 1239.2%
49000  $                  5,316  $           4,000  $           1,316 132.9%
49020  $                  4,358  $         10,000  $          (5,642) 43.6%
49021  $                  2,100  $           4,000  $          (1,900) 52.5%

 $              693,254  $       835,900  $      (142,646) 82.9%
 $              693,254  $       835,900  $      (142,646) 82.9%

50101  $                29,663  $         76,600  $        (46,937) 38.7%
50102  $              134,546  $       292,500  $      (157,954) 46.0%
50201  $                11,845  $         24,000  $        (12,155) 49.4%
50202  $                  8,916  $         39,000  $        (30,084) 22.9%
50203  $                  2,927  $         15,000  $        (12,073) 19.5%
50204  $                20,140  $         60,000  $        (39,860) 33.6%

50205/50206  $                         -  $              500  $             (500) 0.0%
 $              208,036  $       507,600  $      (299,564) 41.0%

51100  $                21,297  $         24,000  $          (2,703) 88.7%
51500  $                  7,837  $         14,000  $          (6,163) 56.0%
52000  $                  1,178  $           4,000  $          (2,822) 29.4%
52500  $                  7,493  $         18,500  $        (11,007) 40.5%
54000  $                     146  $           4,000  $          (3,854) 3.7%
54500  $                         -  $              600  $             (600) 0.0%
55500  $                         -  $              600  $             (600) 0.0%
55100  $                         -  $           7,500  $          (7,500) 0.0%
55200  $                         -  $         12,200  $        (12,200) 0.0%
55400  $                  5,621  $           9,000  $          (3,379) 62.5%
55450  $                  3,907  $           5,000  $          (1,093) 78.1%
57900  $                         -  $           1,000  $          (1,000) 0.0%

 $                47,478  $       100,400  $        (52,922) 47.3%

57601  $                  8,567  $         15,000  $          (6,433) 57.1%
57800  $                  5,662  $           8,000  $          (2,338) 70.8%
58260  $                         -  $       200,000  $      (200,000) 0.0%
58300  $                         -  $         10,000  $        (10,000) 0.0%
58400  $                         -  $           2,000  $          (2,000) 0.0%

 $                14,229  $       235,000  $      (220,771) 6.1%     Total Cemetery Improvements, Maintenance & Repairs

     Cemetery Improvements, Maintenance & Repairs
Flags & Flag Poles
Operating Equipment
Columbariums
Veterans Memorial
Scattering Grounds/Ossuary

Audit Expense
Financial Administration
Special Event Expenses
Other Admin Expenses
Office Equipment

     Total  Administrative Expenses

Contractual Services
Office Supplies
Utilities
Advertising
Dues/Seminars
Legal Expense

IDES - Unemployment Insurance
Employee Health Insurance
Other Payroll Expenses

     Total  Compensation & Benefits
     Administrative Expenses

Casualty Insurance

Expense
     Compensation & Benefits

Wages: Administrative Staff
Wages: Cemetery Staff
Payroll Taxes - FICA
IMRF/Employer (2023 = 5.43%)

Income from Trusts
Other Income & Special Events
Inspection Fees

     Total Revenue
Total Income

Sale of Crypts
Sale of Niches
Sale of Burial Supplies
Sale of Pet Cemetery Spaces
Sales - Other
Interest

     Revenue
Real Estate Tax Levy
Personal Property Replacement Tax
Opening/Closing Fee
Marker Commission
Sale of Lots

Town of the City of Bloomington--Cemetery Fund

Year to Date Budget Comparison

Sep-23 FY24 BudgetIncome

Page 19 of 28 25



55500  $                  5,126  $         15,000  $          (9,874) 34.2%
56000  $                  3,700  $         19,000  $        (15,300) 19.5%
56500  $                  2,158  $         12,000  $          (9,842) 18.0%
56600  $                  2,459  $         15,000  $        (12,541) 16.4%
56700  $                         -  $         12,000  $        (12,000) 0.0%
56800  $                  1,890  $           4,000  $          (2,110) 47.3%
57000  $                         -  $           2,000  $          (2,000) 0.0%
57602  $                  9,710  $         25,000  $        (15,290) 38.8%
57603  $                  2,560  $         20,000  $        (17,440) 12.8%
57700  $                         -  $           1,500  $          (1,500) 0.0%
58100  $                  6,220  $         15,000  $          (8,780) 41.5%
59900  $                       55  $           1,000  $             (945) 5.5%

 $                33,878  $       141,500  $      (107,622) 23.9%

Total Expense  $              303,621  $       984,500  $      (680,879) 30.8%

Net Income  $              389,632  $      (148,600)  $       538,232 

Other Cemetery Expenses
     Total Cemetery Operations

Removal of Leaves/Branches 
Office Repairs & Maintenance
Grounds Maintenance/Repairs
Road, Fence, Lot, Drains
Equipment Building
Grave Markers

     Cemetery Operations
Fuel, Oil & Equipment
Tree Removal/Monument Repair
Equipment Repairs
Cemetery Supplies & Maintenance
Rental Equipment & Leasing

Town of the City of Bloomington--Cemetery Fund

Year to Date Budget Comparison (cont.)

Sep-23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

Page 20 of 28 26



Date Number Name Amount
10500 Heartland (7774)

09/04/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 96.80
09/05/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 245.17
09/06/2023 42529 ColdSpring Memorial Group -775.80
09/06/2023 42530 Evergreen FS Inc -1,178.56
09/06/2023 42531 Ameren Illinois -411.35
09/06/2023 42532 RP Lumber Company Inc -19.95
09/06/2023 42533 Interstate ALL Battery Center -31.50
09/08/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 2,850.00
09/12/2023 42534 COMCAST Business -233.79
09/12/2023 42535 Dave Capodice Excavating Inc -347.10
09/12/2023 42536 Evergreen FS Inc -706.95
09/12/2023 42537 Illinois Portable Toilets -440.00
09/12/2023 42538 Growing Grounds -39.94
09/13/2023 Transfer Ring, Rhoda 600.00
09/13/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 135.66
09/14/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 28.83
09/15/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 246.00
09/15/2023 2023915 Payroll Direct Deposit -10,292.13
09/15/2023 92106660 EFTPS - IRS -3,080.80
09/15/2023 1966558672 IL Dept of Revenue -634.75
09/17/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 23.97
09/18/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 5,064.70
09/19/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 19.15
09/19/2023 42539 VISA BMCU...1484 -114.40
09/19/2023 42540 Dave Capodice Excavating Inc -8,075.00
09/20/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 751.62
09/21/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 19.12
09/22/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 2,434.90
09/22/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 4,100.00
09/26/2023 42541 ColdSpring Memorial Group -904.50
09/26/2023 42542 City of Bloomington Water Dept -594.22
09/26/2023 42543 NICOR Gas -104.32
09/26/2023 42544 Nord Outdoor Power -769.99
09/26/2023 42545 City of Bloomington TWP - Reimburse -7,672.17
09/26/2023 42546 Ameren Illinois -408.13
09/29/2023 2023930 Payroll Direct Deposit -8,795.38
09/29/2023 54426844 EFTPS - IRS -2,538.62
09/29/2023 0470156240 IL Dept of Revenue -536.77
09/30/2023 0817832912 IDES - IL Dept of Emp Sec -886.54
09/30/2023 Deposit HBT - Heartland Bank & Trust 96.80

Total -32,879.94

Town of the City of Bloomington--Cemetery Fund
Checking Account Activity

Page 21 of 28 27



This page was intentionally left blank.

Page 22 of 28 28



)SS

Supervisor of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean County, Illinois. Notary Public

Joseph B Gibson

Garrett Thalgott

ACCT Date Due Amount 
52000 10/31/23 $500.00
56600 10/31/23 $1,500.00
55200 10/31/23 $12,200.00
55400 10/31/23 $100.00
56600 10/31/23 $500.00
56600 10/31/23 $100.00
56700 10/31/23 $50.00

$14,950.00TOTAL:  Requests for  Payments
Midwest Construction Rental/Others/VISA equipment rental (estimated)
Lowe's/Menards/Others/VISA hose nozzle & batteries (estimated)
Growing Grounds/Lowe's/VISA/Others rakes, sod cutter, shovels (estimated)
Dollar General/Others/VISA Ice & complimentary candies, drinks (estimated) (Cem Walk)
City of Bloomington Township annual financials (estimated)
Amazon/VISA/Others wheelchairs (estimated)
Amazon/VISA/Others office supplies (estimated)

VENDORS DESCRIPTION 

Board of Trustees of the Evergreen Memorial Cemetery, Town of the City of 
Bloomington, McLean County, Illinois

Cemetery Board Vice President:

CEMETERY FUND:  Exhibit "A" -  REQUEST FOR PAYMENT:   October 9, 2023  Meeting

     This 9th day of October 2023.

WE, the undersigned CEMETERY BOARD OF TRUSTEES, do hereby authorize payment of the bills attached hereto as Exhibit "A". We have
examined the foregoing proposed claims and find the same in all respects true and correct and that there is a verified statement from the Township
Supervisor indicating that these amounts should be paid and that the CEMETERY BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Town of the City of Bloomington,
at a regularly constituted Meeting and by Motion agreed to by majority of the members of the CEMETERY BOARD OF TRUSTEES, said amounts
shall be paid in accordance with 60 ILCS 1/80-50.

Cemetery Board President: Secretary/Treasurer for Cemetery Board:

Brad A Williams

OFFICE OF THE TOWN SUPERVISOR--CEMETERY FUND ACCOUNTS

I, the CEMETERY MANAGER of EVERGREEN MEMORIAL CEMETERY, a component unit of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean
County, Illinois, do hereby attest that the payouts certified and submitted to the CEMETERY BOARD OF TRUSTEES of EVERGREEN MEMORIAL
CEMETERY, a component unit of the Town of the City of Bloomington, have passed this Motion at a regularly constituted Meeting of the
CEMETERY BOARD. I shall retain a copy of this documentation and shall forward the same to the Township Supervisor for payment within twenty
(20) days after presentation of this Certificate to the Town Supervisor.

Misty Porter, Cemetery Manager

That attached hereto as Exhibit "A" are requests for payment of various bills that have become due since the last meeting of the Cemetery
Board of Trustees.  These amounts include billings that have been received from  September 12, 2023  through  October 9, 2023.

That said DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, being duly sworn, doth depose and say that the following bills are correct, reasonable and unpaid and
should receive the approval of the Cemetery Board of Trustees.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this  9th day of October 2023.

CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT OF ACCOUNTS

CEMETERY FUND ACCOUNTS
McLEAN COUNTY, BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

STATE OF ILLINOIS)
Town of the City of Bloomington

COUNTY OF McLEAN)

Page 23 of 28 29



This page was intentionally left blank.

Page 24 of 28 30



I, the TOWN CLERK of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean County, Illinois, do hereby attest that the payouts certified and submitted
by the TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR will be made from the Township Treasury AND do hereby certify that the above actions taken by the BOARD OF
TRUSTEES of the Town of the City of Bloomington, have approved the Statement of Funds at a regularly constituted meeting of the TOWNSHIP
BOARD.  I shall retain a copy of this documentation and shall forward the same to the TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR.

Town Clerk

WARD 5:  Nick Becker Trustee Mboka Mwilambwe

Board of Trustees of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean
County, Illinois

WARD 3:  Sheila Montney WARD 8:  Kent Lee

WARD 4:  John W Danenberger WARD 9:  Tom Crumpler

     This 23rd day of October 2023.

WE, the undersigned BOARD OF TRUSTEES, do hereby authorize payment of the bills attached hereto as Exhibit "A". We have examined the
foregoing proposed claims and find the same in all respects true and correct and that there is a verified statement from the Supervisor indicating
that these amounts should be paid and that the BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the Town of the City of Bloomington, at a regularly constituted meeting
of the BOARD OF TRUSTEES and by Motion agreed to by majority of the members of the TOWNSHIP BOARD, said amounts shall be paid in
accordance with 60 ILCS 1/80-50.

WARD 1:  Jenna L Kearns WARD 6:  Cody Hendricks

WARD 2:  Donna Boelen WARD 7:  Mary "Mollie" Ward

     That attached hereto as Exhibit "A" are requests for payment of various bills that have become due since the last meeting of the Board of 
Trustees.  These amounts include billings that have been received from  September 26, 2023  to October 23, 2023.

     That said DEBORAH L. SKILLRUD, being duly sworn, doth depose and say that the following bills are correct, reasonable and unpaid and 
should receive the approval of the Board of Trustees.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this  23rd day of October 2023.

.
Supervisor of the Town of the City of Bloomington, McLean County, 
Illinois. Notary Public

STATE OF ILLINOIS)
)SS Town of the City of Bloomington

COUNTY OF McLEAN)

OFFICE OF THE TOWN SUPERVISOR--ALL ACCOUNTS

CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT OF ACCOUNTS--SUPERVISOR 
ALL ACCOUNTS

McLEAN COUNTY, BLOOMINGTON, ILLINOIS

Page 25 of 28 31



This page was intentionally left blank.

Page 26 of 28 32



Due Amount
7011 10/31/23  $         3,916.67 
7011 11/15/23  $         3,916.67 
7021 10/31/23  $         4,000.00 
7021 11/15/23  $         4,000.00 
7041 12/31/23  $              20.00 
7041 12/31/23  $              20.00 
7041 12/31/23  $              20.00 
7041 12/31/23  $              20.00 
7041 12/31/23  $              20.00 
7041 12/31/23  $              20.00 
7041 12/31/23  $              20.00 
7041 12/31/23  $              20.00 
7041 12/31/23  $              20.00 
7041 12/31/23  $              20.00 

 $       16,033.34 

9231 10/31/23  $         4,000.00 
9251 10/31/23  $         1,000.00 
9271 10/31/23  $         2,000.00 
9291 10/31/23  $            175.00 
9301 10/31/23  $       15,000.00 
9312 10/31/23  $         1,500.00 

 $       23,675.00 

1025 10/31/23  $            316.56 
 $            316.56 

1040 10/31/23  $         1,500.00 
1045 10/31/23  $         2,500.00 

 $         4,000.00 

2100 10/31/23  $       14,662.00 
 $       14,662.00 

8161 10/31/23 35.00$              
8191 10/31/23  $            600.00 
8221 10/31/23  $            650.00 

 $         1,285.00 
 $       59,971.90 TOTAL Request for Payment       

Supervisor's Claims TOTAL       
Computer/Contract Services BMCU VISA/Arthur Agency/Totally TWP Websites/Others
Office Supplies BMCU Visa/Klopfenstein/Others (Estimated)
Education/Conference/Meetings BMCU VISA/Metropolitan TWP Assoc/Others

Capital Fund Reserve TOTAL     
Supervisor's Claims

Township Building Improvements J Spencer Consturction LLC - change order 6: replace ext doors

Services & Expenses TOTAL     
Capital Fund Reserve

Special Projects BMCU VISA/Lowe's/Menard's/Others
Building Maintenance BMCU Visa/TCI Companies Inc/Others (Estimated)

Services & Expenses
Community Agency Funding TOTAL     

GA Client Services/Workfare Development BMCU VISA/U-Haul/Wex/Skillrud/Others (Estimated)

Membership Dues BMCU Visa/MIRA/BNAR/MLS/IDPFR/IAAO/Others
Assessor's Claims TOTAL     

Community Agency Funding

Computer Services BMCU Visa/COB/C-Tech/Others (Estimated)
Janitorial Soaring Eagle Cleaning Services LLC
Appraisal Services Danny Bowman  (Estimated)
Education/Meetings/Conferences BMCU Visa/IAAO/IPAI/ILDOR/Others  (Estimated)
Equipment  BMCU VISA/COB/Microsoft/Others

Town Trustee  09/25/2023 Ward 8:  K Lee

Town Trustee  09/25/2023 Ward 3:  S Montney
Town Trustee  09/25/2023 Ward 4:  J Danenberger
Town Trustee  09/25/2023 Ward 5:  N Becker

Compensation (Salaries) TOTAL     
Assessor's Claims

TWP Assessor S Scudder
Town Trustee  09/25/2023 Ward 1:  J Kearns
Town Trustee  09/25/2023 Ward 2:  D Boelen

TWP Supervisor D Skillrud
TWP Assessor S Scudder

GENERAL TOWN ADMINISTRATION FUND:  Exhibit "A"
REQUEST FOR PAYMENT:  October 23, 2023 Meeting

Compensation (Salaries)
TWP Supervisor D Skillrud

Town Trustee  09/25/2023 Ward 9:  T Crumpler
Town Trustee  09/25/2023 Trustee  M Mwilambwe

Town Trustee  09/25/2023 Ward 6:  C Hendricks
Town Trustee  09/25/2023 Ward 7:  M Ward

Page 27 of 28 33



1,204,633$               4,367,668$       591,879$          6,164,181$       

Revenues 1,835$                      16,403$            1,886$              20,124$            
-$                              2,415$              2,415$              

8,135$                      8,135$              
8,076$                      8,076$              

150$                         150$                 
600$                         600$                 

126,651$                  411,181$          50,015$            587,847$          
145,447$                  429,998$          51,901$            627,347$          

Expenditures 2,470$                      2,470$              
1,672$              1,672$              

770$                         (46,103)$           (45,333)$           
27,966$            27,966$            

12,164$                    12,164$            
13,588$            13,588$            

34,437$                    93,899$            128,337$          
2,019$              2,019$              
2,169$              2,169$              

49,841$                    67,245$            27,966$            145,051$          

506,661$                  1,644,906$       200,084$          2,351,650$       
21.5449% 69.9469% 8.5082% 100.0000%

16,534$                    53,680$            6,530$              76,744$            
26,827$                    87,094$            10,594$            124,515$          
21,688$                    70,412$            8,565$              100,665$          

3,497$                      11,352$            1,381$              16,230$            
68,546$                    222,538$          27,069$            318,153$          

99,902$                    324,339$          39,452$            463,693$          
101,765$                  330,386$          40,187$            472,338$          

60,031$                    194,895$          23,707$            278,633$          
 104,367$                  338,835$          41,215$            484,417$          

88,031$                    285,799$          34,764$            408,594$          
38,620$                    125,382$          15,251$            179,253$          

492,716$                  1,599,635$       194,576$          2,286,928$       

13,944.43$               45,271.49$       5,506.75$         64,722.67$       

09/27/2023 06-2023
TOTAL

FY2024 Tax Levy Extension for Tax Year 2022
05/25/2023 01-2023
06/09/2023 02-2023
06/26/2023 03-2023
08/29/2023 04-2023
09/12/2023 05-2023

08/15/2023 06-2023
TOTAL

FY2024 Tax Levy Extension for Tax Year 2022
Percentage

FY2024 Personal Property Replacement Tax
04/06/2023 03-2023
05/04/2023 04-2023
07/05/2023 05-2023

Revenue Distribution Report
Fiscal Year To Date ~ FY2024

 Cemetery Fund 
 Town Admin. 

Fund 
 General 

Assistance 
 COMBINED 

FUNDS 

Services & Expenses
Supervisor's Office

Total Expenditures

1,300,240$           4,730,422$     615,814$        6,646,476$     Public Fund Balances at Month End

Capital Improvements
Casework/General Assistance
Cemetery Operations
Community Agency Funding
Compensation & Benefits

Total Revenues

Administrative Expenses
Assessor's Office

Sales
Inspection Fees
Prepaid O/C Deposits transferred (to)/from Trust Acct 7114
Real Estate Tax Levy

Other Income & Special Events
Opening/Closing Fees

Public Fund Balances at Beginning of Month

Interest

STATEMENT OF FUNDS
Month of:  SEPTEMBER

 Cemetery Public 
Fund 

 General Town 
Fund 

 General 
Assistance 

 COMBINED 
FUNDS 

Town of the City of Bloomington

Page 28 of 28 34



 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.C.

FOR CITY OF BLOOMINGTON TOWNSHIP: October 23, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: Town of the City of Bloomington

SUBJECT: Consideration and Action to Approve the October 23, 2023 General Town Fund
Request for Payment

RECOMMENDED MOTION: The October 23, 2023 Request for Payment be approved

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: Pursuant to Township Code 60 ILCS 1/80-10, the Township Board must
examine and audit the accounts before any bills are paid (excluding general assistance and
wages and taxes) and may approve bills in a summary statement.  Township is presenting
this request for payment for Board approval.

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: The amount approved for payment by the Cemetery Board of Trustees
from the Cemetery Fund is $14,950.00.
 
The amount requested for approval by the Board of Trustees from the General Town
Administration Fund is $59,971.90.

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Debbie Stilwell

35



 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.A.

FOR CITY OF BLOOMINGTON TOWNSHIP: October 23, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: Town of the City of Bloomington

SUBJECT: Report on Change Order #6 for the COBT Office Renovation Project

RECOMMENDED MOTION: None; for communication purposes only

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: The Township Board of Trustees has authorized the Township Supervisor to
execute change orders without prior Board approval, not to exceed a maximum amount of
$76,500 across all change orders.
 
On October 16, 2023, Township Supervisor Deborah Skillrud signed off on Change Order #6,
for $14,662.00, for the purpose of removing and replacing the building's exteriors door. 
 
The original plan of renovation called for minimal repair and painting of the exterior
entrance doors; however upon further inspection, it was determined that the existing doors
were past the point of repair and should be replaced.

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: Those involved in the decision
include Farnsworth Group, J Spencer Construction, and the Township Elected Officials,
Supervisor Skillrud and Assessor Steve Scudder.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: The net total of all change orders to date is $17,452.00.

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Debbie Stilwell

ATTACHMENTS:
6A COBT Bldg Renovation Change Order 6.pdf

36

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2236583/6A_COBT_Bldg_Renovation_Change_Order_6.pdf


37



j Spencer Construction, LLC. 
2028 Warehouse Rd. 

Normal, IL   61761 
Phone 309-454-5885 

Fax 309-452-1989 
E-mail: jsc@jspencerconstruction.com 

Website: jspencerconstruction.com 
 
 

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST #6 
 
 
     Date:      9/5/23 
                     

To:  Michael Buragas (Farnsworth Group)  
 
    From:  Brock Spencer (J Spencer Construction LLC)  
 
       Re:  COBT Building Renovation: Exterior Door Replacements  
 
Contract Change Directive as follows:   
 
Owner requested pricing to replace doors and frames to C102 and C105  
 
Remove existing doors/frames.  
Provide and install  

• (2)  3/0-7/10 hollow metal frames and hollow metal doors flush. Doors to be insulated. 
• (2) continuous hinges  
• (2) Rim exit devices w/ lever trim  
• (2) Rain Drip  
• (2) Weatherstrip sets  
• (2) sweeps  
• (2) thresholds  

 
**The existing doors are already scheduled for new closers.  We can install these on the new doors.  
Existing doors are already scheduled for paint.  New doors will be painted instead. ** 
 
Subcontractor/Supplier Amount 
Security Door Material $7,820.00
Caulk/Anchor Material $200
Keying $250

Subtotal #1 $8,270.00
15%  markup $1,241

J Spencer Labor 48 hours x $104 $4,992
Subtotal #2 $14,503
Bond $160
TOTAL $14,662  

38

mailto:jsc@jspencerconstruction.com


 
 
TOTAL ADD TO PROJECT: $14,662.00  
 
 
 
Accepted by:  _________________________________________________________ 
                         Signature, Title, Date 

39



 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.B.

FOR CITY OF BLOOMINGTON TOWNSHIP: October 23, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: Town of the City of Bloomington

SUBJECT: Report on Township as the Victim of Check Washing Fraud

RECOMMENDED MOTION: None; for communication purposes only

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: Township has been the victim of check washing fraud.  It came to our
attention after a vendor inquired about payment, on their latest invoice, that was not
received in the expected timeframe. After investigation, it was discovered that the check
had been intercepted, washed, and cashed by a fraudulent entity.  While no fault of
Township, the Bank’s fraud protocols required that we close the affected checking account
and open a new one with added security controls in place. (It should be noted that these
controls do come with some additional service fees, albeit minimal.)

The new account will also require changes in our check-writing and internal controls
processes and procedures, for which staff has already consulted the Township Auditor for
best-practice recommendations.

Activity attributed to the fraud will be reflected in both this month and next month
Financial Statements as we close the books on the old account and begin using the new
one.

The fraud has been reported to various authorities including the Bloomington Police
Department, Bloomington Postmaster General, and the Bloomington on-site Postal Federal
Investigator.

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: The entities involved in the
investigation include J Spencer Construction, Prairie State Bank, Bloomington Police
Department, Bloomington Post Office, Rick Phillips of Phillips & Associates, CPAs, P.C., and
John Redlingshafer, Township Attorney.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: No monies were lost by Township as a result of the fraud.  Prairie State
Bank issued a full credit to the account.

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Debbie Stilwell

40



 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.C.

FOR CITY OF BLOOMINGTON TOWNSHIP: October 23, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: Town of the City of Bloomington

SUBJECT: Consideration and Action to Approve the Estimated Fiscal Year 2024 Tax Levy for
Tax Year 2023

RECOMMENDED MOTION: The Estimated Fiscal Year 2024 Tax Levy for Tax Year 2023 of
$2,351,600 be approved

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: Illinois Municipal Code Division 3 Levy and Collection of Taxes (65 ILCS 5)
grants Townships the power to collect taxes for the purpose of conducting business.  Illinois
Property Tax Code Division 2 Truth in Taxation (35 ILCS 200/18) dictates the process for
which a tax levy ordinance is passed. Townships must present for Board approval an
estimated levy no less than 20 days prior to adopting a tax levy ordinance.  If the estimated
levy is more than 5% of the amount extended in the prior year, notice must be given and a
public hearing held.  The Tax Levy Ordinance must then be filed with the County Clerk on or
before the last Tuesday of December.

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: For Tax Year 2023, Township is requesting $2,351,600, which remains
the same since Tax Year 2017, and thus requires no public notice or hearing.
 
While the overall levy for Township remains flat year over year, there have been a few
changes to the levies of the individual funds:
 

The Evergreen Memorial Cemetery Fund is increasing by $93,400 in order to complete
the buildout of the columbaria within the mausoleum and replace the surrounding
concrete and walkways.

 
The General Assistance Fund is decreasing by $100,000 to offset the increase to the
Cemetery Fund and to reduce the estimated ending fund balance.

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Debbie Stilwell

ATTACHMENTS:

41



6C FY2024 Tax Levy Worksheet BOUND 20231018 ~ Preliminary.pdf

42

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2239448/6C_FY2024_Tax_Levy_Worksheet_BOUND_20231018___Preliminary.pdf


1,033,544 2,684,480 449,433 4,167,457

Projected Revenues 600 50,000 20,000 70,600
4,000 4,000

10,000 41,000 10 51,010
25 25

70,000 300,000 30,000 400,000
90,000 90,000
9,000 9,000

123,700 123,700
4,000 4,000

15,000 15,000
600,000 1,651,600 100,000 2,351,600

Transferred from GT 200,000 200,000
911,300 2,042,625 365,010 3,318,935

Projected Expenditures 98,400 98,400
150,144 150,144
476,410 476,410

185,000 185,000
536,168 536,168

392,500 392,500
340,000 340,000

517,000 1,251,995 1,768,995
191,800 191,800
117,450 117,450
200,000 200,000

1,192,900 2,727,799 536,168 4,456,867

751,944 1,999,305 278,275 3,029,524

99,408 187,616 44,681
7.56 10.66 6.23

Tax Levy Split Percentages 0.2551 0.7023 0.0425

Tax Year: 2019 2020 2021 2022

Cemetery Fund 506,600 506,600 506,600 506,600
General Town Fund 1,645,000 1,645,000 1,645,000 1,645,000
General Assistance Fund 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

2,351,600 2,351,600 2,351,600 2,351,600
 

10/18/2023

 COMBINED 
FUNDS 

Township Litigation Income

 Cemetery 
Fund 

 General 
Town Fund 

 General 
Assistance 

Fund 

Other Income & Special Events

Interest
Income from Trusts

Tax Levy

Projected Beginning Balance

Total LEVY

PAST LEVY COMPARISONS

Cemetery Operations
Community Agency Funding

Casework/General Assistance

*NOTE:  "Capital Fund Reserve" not included in totals to compute "Average Monthly Expenditures" or "Number of Months in Reserve at end of FY"

Number of Months in Reserve at end of FY
Average Monthly Expenditures

Projected Ending Balance 

Compensation & Benefits
Services & Expenses

Total Projected Expenditures

Supervisor's Office
GT Funds Transferred to GA Fund

Town of the City of Bloomington
FY2024 Tax Levy
For Tax Year 2023

FY2024:  04/01/2023 - 03/31/2024

Cemetery Improvements, Maintenance & Repairs
Capital Fund

Personal Property Replacement Tax

Sales
Inspection Fee

Marker Commission

Refunds and Recoveries

Opening/Closing Fee

Tax Levy

Total Projected Revenues

Administrative Expenses
Assessor's Office

43



Beginning Public Fund Balance 453,742 737,764 944,330 1,169,908 1,033,544

Revenues 615 531 1,066 600 600
12,900 2,549 3,186 4,000 4,000
43,392 96,994 146,453 70,000 70,000
87,970 107,355 112,245 90,000 90,000

8,156 8,490 8,551 9,000 9,000
117,956 123,609 110,407 131,700 123,700

76,520 67,603 80,157 70,000 70,000
18,860 11,620 2,725 11,000 11,000
19,480 42,586 26,315 48,000 40,000

300 350 10 500 500
1,510 850 1,000 700 700
1,286 600 200 1,500 1,500

3,075 3,900 3,725 4,000 4,000
9,196 15,831 12,513 10,000 10,000

506,314 506,502 506,589 506,600 600,000
789,574 865,762 904,735 825,900 911,300

Expenditures 79,269 86,408 80,707 97,697 98,400
20,840 20,299 21,630 21,297 22,000

8,168 12,741 6,545 14,000 14,000
2,821 3,021 2,572 4,000 4,000

15,522 15,101 15,929 18,500 18,500
1,056 931 3,096 4,000 4,000

500 350 350 600 600
0 0 0 600 600

7,150 7,250 7,000 7,500 7,500
12,200 12,200 12,200 12,200 12,200

6,802 8,839 5,698 9,000 9,000
4,211 5,676 5,337 5,000 5,000

0 0 350 1,000 1,000
79,968 59,733 79,519 228,567 185,000

4,780 14,874 5,318 8,567 15,000
14,388 14,632 74,201 8,000 8,000
60,792 30,227 0 0 0

0 0 0 200,000 150,000
0 0 0 10,000 10,000
9 0 0 2,000 2,000

36,157 118,677 108,634 136,500 392,500
5,665 8,016 9,754 10,000 10,000

12,360 16,700 9,950 19,000 19,000
1,530 6,545 8,339 12,000 18,000

72 6,824 6,991 15,000 15,000
0 0 2,103 12,000 12,000

3,200 2,038 2,658 4,000 4,000
27 482 4,800 2,000 2,000

7,610 19,209 17,670 25,000 275,000
18 45,625 31,785 20,000 20,000

1,048 128 186 1,500 1,500
15 0 1,003 1,000 1,000

4,610 13,110 13,395 15,000 15,000
310,158 394,378 410,297 499,500 517,000

59,150 68,539 59,762 70,000 73,000
167,453 223,110 246,828 292,500 307,000

0 0 0 0 0
16,195 21,041 22,094 24,000 24,000
24,844 30,604 25,946 39,000 39,000

6,517 8,621 9,903 13,500 13,500
35,524 41,930 45,484 60,000 60,000

475 533 280 500 500
505,552 659,196 679,157 962,264 1,192,900

737,764 944,330 1,169,908 1,033,544 751,944
42,129   54,933   56,596   80,189    99,408   

17.51 17.19 20.67 12.89 7.56

Interest
Income from Trusts

Sales

Opening/Closing Fee

Cemetery Fund

Personal Property Replacement Tax

Dues/Seminars
Legal Expense

Inspection Fee

Tax Levy

Marker Commission

Other Sales

Total Revenues

Sale of Lots
Sale of Crypts
Sale of Niches
Sale of Burial Supplies

Other Income & Special Events

Casualty Insurance
Contractual Services
Office Supplies
Utilities
Advertising

Audit Expense

Administrative Expenses

COBT for Financial Administration

Sale of Pet Cemetery Spaces

Average Monthly Expenditures
Number of Months in Reserve at end of FY

Ending Public Fund Balance

Compensation & Benefits

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources In/(Out)

Scattering Grounds/Ossuary

Other Admin Expenses

Other Payroll Expenses

Trustee Compensation
Payroll Taxes
IMRF
IDES - Unemployment
Employee Health Insurance, Etc.

Wages: Administrative Staff
Wages: Cemetery Staff

Removal of Leaves/Branches

Other CEM Expenses

Road, Fence, Lot, Drains

Rental Equipment & Leasing
CEM Supplies & Maintenance

Columbariums

Operating Equipment

Special Event Expenses

Office Equipment

Mausoleum (including debt service)

Flags & Poles
Cemetery Improvements, Maintenance & Repairs

Grave Markers

Tree Removal/Monument Repair

Veterans Memorial

Equipment Building

Fuel, Oil & Equipment

Equipment Repairs

Cemetery Operations

Office Repairs & Maintenance
Grounds Maintenance/Repair

FY2024 Prelimary 
Levy for  10/23/2023 

posting

10/18/2023

FY2024 est. Revenue 
& Expenses as of 

09/30/2023 (6 
months)

 FY2023 Actual 
Revenue & 
Expenses 

Town of the City of Bloomington
Evergreen Memorial Cemetery Fund  FY2024 Tax Levy

For Tax Year 2023
FY2024:  04/01/2023 - 03/31/2024

 FY2021 Actual 
Revenue & 
Expenses 

 FY2022 Actual 
Revenue & 
Expenses 

44



Beginning Fund Balance 1,932,227 2,396,761 2,944,257 3,516,730 2,684,480

Revenues 6,085 4,064 61,179 125,000 50,000
51,218 26,638 37,546 38,000 38,000

5,000 17,086 0 0 1,000
0 1,295 2,190 2,000 2,000
0 0 0 0 25

140,871 314,934 475,541 350,000 300,000
1,643,738 1,644,570 1,644,925 1,645,000 1,651,600

0 0 0 0
1,846,912 2,008,586 2,221,381 2,160,000 2,042,625

Expenditures 62,462 52,659 74,483 150,144 150,144
0 0 0 11,544 21,544

2,844 1,044 2,630 5,000 3,000
2,887 3,081 2,499 3,000 3,000
4,904 5,366 5,656 5,800 5,800

165 0 0 300 300
4,182 635 4,010 2,000 2,000

0 0 30 500 500
3,384 1,140 5,422 6,000 6,000

0 0 0 1,500 1,500
3,040 1,893 13,225 17,000 9,000

0 0 0 9,000 9,000
13,259 13,145 11,740 34,000 34,000

1,800 1,825 2,100 2,000 2,000
23,913 20,446 25,059 20,000 20,000

0 2,100 0 30,000 30,000
2,085 1,983 2,112 2,500 2,500

841,500 476,410
0 1

841,500 476,409

175,216 149,054 241,367 340,000 340,000
18,500 18,500 15,000 25,000 25,000
51,502 6,950 35,918 50,000 50,000
35,000 45,000 35,000 35,000 35,000
68,500 68,500 80,000 80,000 80,000

CERP/HERE 0 10,104 0 150,000 150,000

1,040,539 1,061,804 1,017,790 1,124,660 1,251,995
94,000 94,000 94,000 94,000 94,000
96,000 96,000 96,000 96,000 96,000

2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400
2,500 2,280 2,160 2,400 2,400

292,826 302,193 316,959 310,000 375,000
294,159 307,188 274,436 404,000 420,000

82,784 81,429 62,315 65,000 88,650
55,465 57,701 56,795 70,000 75,720

119,328 117,454 111,401 77,500 94,575
1,077 1,159 1,324 3,360 3,250

Community Agency Funding

Compensation & Benefits

Senior Services 

TWP Supervisor

Community Medical
GA Client Service Funding
Youth Services

Group Medical
State Unemployment

Town Trustees
GA Staff

General Town Fund

Replatting & Remapping

 FY2022 Actual 
Revenue & 
Expenses 

Other Income: GA Administration

 FY2023 Actual 
Revenue & 
Expenses 

 FY2021 Actual 
Revenue & 
Expenses 

Telephone

Education/Meetings/Conferences

Township Litigation Income
Personal Property Replacement Tax
Tax Levy
Proceeds from Loan

Other Income: Grant 

Interest

Township Building Improvements

Utilities
Postage

Equipment Repair/Rental

Membership Dues

Appraisal Services

Mapping/GIS Services

FICA

Janitorial
Computer Services

Other Income

Capital Fund Reserve
Program Facility

Total Revenues

Assessor's Office

Office Supplies
Publications & Printing
Equipment

Town of the City of Bloomington

 FY2025 Preliminary 
Levy for 10/23/2023 

posting 

General Town Fund  FY2024 Tax Levy
For Tax Year 2023

FY2024:  04/01/2023 - 03/31/2024

FY2024 est. Revenue 
& Expenses as of 

09/30/2023 (6 months)

TWP Assessor

Rent/Debt Service
Auto Expense

IMRF
Deputy Assessors

Town Clerk

Page 1 of 2 45



General Town Fund  FY2022 Actual 
Revenue & 
Expenses 

 FY2023 Actual 
Revenue & 
Expenses 

 FY2021 Actual 
Revenue & 
Expenses 

Town of the City of Bloomington

 FY2025 Preliminary 
Levy for 10/23/2023 

posting 

General Town Fund  FY2024 Tax Levy
For Tax Year 2023

FY2024:  04/01/2023 - 03/31/2024

FY2024 est. Revenue 
& Expenses as of 

09/30/2023 (6 months)
62,103 161,239 273,871 436,921 191,800

1,667 1,661 1,720 1,850 2,000
7,150 7,250 7,000 7,500 8,000
5,358 3,990 4,617 12,000 12,000

12,773 12,978 11,647 11,980 13,000
686 1,024 698 800 800

2,237 2,429 1,850 5,000 7,500
0 0 0 0 20,000

8,578 11,213 8,938 20,000 20,000
5,855 4,290 4,849 6,000 6,000

0 0 0 0 2,500
0 87,429 155,461 181,791 50,000

17,798 28,976 77,091 190,000 50,000
 

42,058 36,335 41,396 99,025 117,450
1,425 2,361 1,733 2,500 3,000

0 0 0 0 20,000
2,250 2,281 2,625 2,625 3,500
7,356 8,050 8,484 10,250 11,500
3,748 3,591 4,267 4,500 5,500
1,086 1,496 203 250 3,500
1,256 649 3,442 3,500 4,000
4,521 0 300 53,900 25,000
3,332 3,557 3,716 3,800 6,000
5,724 3,244 4,760 5,000 6,000

0 0 0 250 3,000
75 75 165 200 1,000

11,224 10,971 11,521 12,000 25,000
60 60 180 250 450

Emergency Transfer of Funds 0 0 0 0 200,000
GT Funds Transferred to GA Fund 0 0 0 200,000

1,382,379 1,461,090 1,648,908 2,992,250 2,727,799

2,396,761 2,944,257 3,516,730 2,684,480 1,999,306

113,715 112,057 118,030 148,247 187,616
21.08 26.27 29.80 18.11 10.66

Janitorial

Number of Months in Reserve at end of FY
Average Monthly Expenditures

Ending Fund Balance

Services & Expenses

Supervisor's Office

Total Expenditures

Insurance
Publishing

Computer/Contract Services
Membership Dues

Rent/Debt Service

Office Supplies

Building Security

Building Maintenance

Telephones
Car Expense
Education/Conference/Meetings
Equipment
Equipment Repair/Rental

Utilities

Debt Service: Principle & Interest

Postage

Janitorial Services & Supplies

Building Repairs
Special Projects

Publications

10/18/2023

*NOTE: "Capital Fund Reserve" is not included in totals to compute "Average Monthly Expenditures" or "Number of Months in Reserve at end of FY"

Legal Expense

Other Expenditures

Printing

Membership Dues
Auditing Expense

Page 2 of 2 46



Beginning Fund Balance 513,346 490,032 538,224 546,905 449,433

Revenues 1,255 1,021 2,460 21,000 20,000
9 0 0 0 10

17,122 38,292 57,835 45,000 30,000
37,951 25,658 40,269 20,000 15,000

199,783 199,960 200,055 200,084 100,000
0  0 0 200,000

256,120 264,931 300,619 286,084 365,010

Expenditures 85,876 56,435 50,072 60,000 85,000
129,764 78,803 82,844 80,000 150,000

18,821 10,257 7,115 15,000 50,000
0 0 0 0 20,000

38,360 67,122 147,818 220,000 200,000
0 0 0 0 10,000

1,000 2,056 2,056 2,056 6,168
893 238 231 1,500 5,000

4,720 1,828 1,802 5,000 10,000
279,434 216,739 291,938 383,556 536,168

490,032 538,224 546,905 449,433 278,275

23,286             18,062             24,328             31,963                44,681           
21.04 29.80 22.48 14.06 6.23

10/18/2023

Ending Fund Balance 

Number of Months in Reserve at end of FY
Average Monthly Expenditures

Hospital
Burial
Transportation

Total Expenditures
Allowances

Other Income
Interest

Total Revenues

Personal Property Replacement Tax
Refunds and Recoveries
Tax Levy
Transferred from GT

Utilities

Groceries/Personal Essentials

Medical

Rent

Emergency Assistance

Town of the City of Bloomington
General Assistance Fund  FY2024 Tax Levy

For Tax Year 2023
FY2024:  04/01/2023 - 03/31/2024

 FY2022 
Actual 

Revenue & 
Expenses 

 FY2021 
Actual 

Revenue & 
Expenses 

 FY2025 
Preliminary 

Levy for 
10/23/2023 

posting 

FY2024 est. 
Revenue & 

Expenses as 
of 09/30/2023 

(6 months)

General Assistance Fund  FY2023 
Actual 

Revenue & 
Expenses 

47



 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.A.

FOR CITY OF BLOOMINGTON TOWNSHIP: October 23, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: Town of the City of Bloomington

SUBJECT: Presentation and Discussion of the Township Supervisor's Report

RECOMMENDED MOTION: None; presentation only

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: A report from the Township Supervisor will be provided.  Questions,
comments, and discussion from the Board are welcome.

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Debbie Stilwell

ATTACHMENTS:
7A 20231023 Supervisor Report.pdf

48

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2236696/7A_20231023_Supervisor_Report.pdf


 
CITY OF BLOOMINGTON TOWNSHIP  

 

 
TO: Township Trustees 
FROM: Deborah L Skillrud, TWP Supervisor 
DATE: October 23, 2023 
RE: Township Supervisor’s Report 
 
 
Building Renovation Project:  Phase 1 of the building project, renovating the Assessor’s 
side, should be complete by the end of October. We will close the office to clients and 
other outside traffic Monday November 6 through Thursday November 9, 2023 in order 
to move the Assessor’s team, as well as to temporarily locate the Supervisor’s team, 
into the newly renovated space. Phase 2, renovating the Supervisor’s side, will then 
begin. 
 
HERE Program: Township continues to serve a number of clients through the Housing 
Eviction Relief Efforts (HERE) Program. In September, $8,458 was disbursed for rent, 
and $910 towards a mortgage, staving off eviction for seven (7) individuals.  A total of 
$2,463 was disbursed for six (6) individuals for utilities. A total of $163,621 has been 

disbursed through the HERE program since December 2022. 
 
General Assistance: One-hundred twenty-six (126) applicants sought Township services 
in the month of September. Of those, sixty-six (66) were potentially eligible for General 
Assistance and sixty (60) were potentially eligible for Emergency Assistance. 
 
Clients from Rural Townships Bloomington and Danvers were served in September. 
 
There were no Supplemental Security Income (SSI) reimbursements for Township during 
September, however we did process a reimbursement of $3,686 for a Bloomington 
Township client. 
 
POTS Recycling:  POTS continues with pick up one day a week.  As mentioned at the 
September Board Meeting, Township will be looking for a new sponsor and collection 
site as one of the current sponsors, Owens Nursery & Florist, will be closing their retail 
store and garden center at the end of the year. 
 

Evergreen Memorial Cemetery:  The nationally recognized Evergreen Cemetery Walk, 
in association with the McLean County History Museum, has concluded for another year, 
having taken place on Saturday September 30, Sunday October 1, Saturday October 7, 
and Sunday October 8, 2023. A total of 2,279 people attended in person this year.  The 
Virtual Walk will be viewable from November 3 until November 30, 2023.  A copy of this 
year’s playbill has been provided. 
 
There have been forty-eight (48) burials year to date in 2023. 

49



General Assistance

$1,725.00Grants (New Clients) : 5

$9,995.00Grants (Previous Clients) : 29

In-Process : 20

Denials : 66

Sanctions : 3

Terminations : 5

128 $11,720.00

General Assistance - Medical

Referrals : 2

Disbursements : 0

2 $0.00

General Assistance - Work Program Assignments

Job Training : 16

Workfare : 9

25

General Assistance - Work Program Expenses

$256.00WF 30 Day : 8

$10.00WF 7 Day Bus : 1

$32.00WF Gasoline : 1

10 $298.00

Emergency Assistance

$18,899.75Grants : 19

In-Process : 0

Denials : 8

27 $18,899.75

Additional Assistance

$21.00GA - Transient : 2

$1,872.68GT - HERE (AMEREN ILLINOIS) : 5

$804.90GT - HERE (NICOR GAS) : 2

$9,160.98GT - HERE (RENT/MORTGAGE) : 7

16 $11,859.56

Additional Activity

A Call (phone/fax/email) : 293

A Face-to-Face  : 93

General - Intake : 154

General - Orientation : 102

642

$42,777.31850Grand Totals:

[9/1/2023 - 9/30/2023]     Report Date: 10/17/2023
System Activity Report

Page 1 of 1 50



51



52



• 1 •

Public Tours:
September 30 - October 1 and October 7-8, 2023

School Tours:
October 3-5, 2023

Mclean County Museum Of  History Presents

Sponsored by:

Deanna Frautschi
& Alan Bedell

53



• 2 •

     Over the course of almost 30 years, the Evergreen Cemetery Walk has provided 
a unique and invaluable educational experience for students and adults alike. 
Working with Illinois Voices Theatre and Evergreen Memorial Cemetery (partners 
since the Walk’s inception in 1995), and our new partner Broadleaf Media (who 
produces the Virtual Walk) this event has extended its reach even further, helping 
people who are limited by mobility or geography experience this nationally 
recognized, award-winning event. 

     The Walk has helped participants develop an understanding, appreciation, 
and respect for cemeteries as a source of history. This event has helped curb 
cemetery vandalism exponentially, not just at Evergreen Memorial Cemetery, 
but at cemeteries around the region. The Walk has also helped members of our 
FRPPXQLW\� XQGHUVWDQG� WKH� VLJQL¿FDQW� UROHV� LQGLYLGXDOV� IURP� RXU� SDVW� KDYH�
played in local, state, national, and international history by exposing them to the 
HGXFDWLRQDO�EHQH¿W�RI�DFWLQJ�DQG�WKH�DUWV��ZKLFK�EULQJV�RXU�KLVWRU\�WR�OLJKW�DQG�WR�
life. That is the power and impact of this event. 

     Special thanks to our event partners: Dave Krostal, Susan Thetard, and Illinois 
Voices Theatre—Echoes, and the staff and trustees of Evergreen Memorial 
Cemetery, without whom this event would not be possible. We thank Kathe Conley 
and John Capasso for their research, interpretation, and creation of the guide scripts; 
Leisa Barbour for assistance with the teacher and student packets; Micaela Harris 
for graphic design; Nancy Hoover for playbill design; John Capasso, Madeline 
DeCosta, Genevieve Fritz, and Maria Mears for additional research and writing of 
biographies; and the entire staff and volunteers of the McLean County Museum 
of History. We are also extremely grateful for our grocery and restaurant donors 
who keep our volunteers and actors happy and well fed. And, of course, for our 
fabulous and fearless Cemetery Walk volunteers and interns. This event would be 
impossible without you! 

     Finally, we thank you—our community—for your continued support and 
participation (whether in-person or online)! No one expected this event would 
have the impact it has on our community and our shared appreciation for the 
historic value and creative potential of cemeteries. This event is a piece of history 
in its own right, and we hope that it continues for many more years to come.

Evergreen Cemetery Walk Coordinators
Candace Summers, Emily McCusker, and Eric Hansen 54



• 3 • 55



• 4 •

These patrons ensure local students and older adults 
NKXKPI� KP� UGPKQT� ECTG� EGPVGTU� YKNN� EQPVKPWG� VQ� DGPGƂV�
from this valuable educational experience.

GIFTS RECEIVED AS OF SEPTEMBER 5, 2023

Illinois Prairie Community Foundation - Richard and Penny Boser Donor Advised Fund

Mary Anderson
Nancy D. Anderson
Leisa Barbour
Jane and Rich Beal
William Beeler
Nancy Bollman
Ann Champion
Charles and Carla Cherry
Ruth Cobb
Betsy Cole
Zach and Clare Dietmeier
Mike Dolan
Paul Dunn
Mary Eder
Dorothy Frank
Edith Franklin
John Freed 
John and Marilyn Freese
Linda Garbe
Timothy Garvey & Paula Aschim
Sherry and Jim Graehling
Sandra Groves
John and Janet Gundy
Linda Hartema
Mary H. Haskell
Robert and Barb Hathway
Diane Hawk
Margaret Ann Hayden  
Tom and Mary Haynes  

Dolores Hellweg
Kay Henrichs
Jill Hutchison
Zoe Iutzi
Pat Johnson
Elizabeth Kaufman
Stacie and John Killian
Greg and Carol Koos
Lisa and Lance Kwasny
Larry and Shirley Lowe
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Luber
Nola Marquardt
Rose Marsaglia
Vern McGinnis
John and Lorraine McIntyre
Beth Mears
Amy Miller
Beverly J. Miller
Martha Miller
Dixie Mills
JoAnna Mink
José and Joyce Moré 
John and Pam Muirhead
Judith Myers
Marilyn Myers
John and Mary Penn
Patricia Pompa
Janet and Mark Rayburn
Joanne Ressler 

Ed and Sally Rust
Betty Salch
Gerry and Donna Schroeder
Gay E. Semanko
Dr. and Mrs. Virgil Short
John F. Sicks, Jr
Nancy J. Stevens
David and Trudy Strand
Ann Sullivan
Janice Sullivan
Tracey Sullivan-Covert 
Robert and Marilyn Sutherland
Marcia Thomas
Phylis VerSteegh
Paul and Trudy Vogel
Phyllis Wallace
Patsy Webber
Thomas and Karen Whalen
Mr. and Mrs. Sherman Wilkerson 
Don and Nancy Wilkey
Julie Williams
Kris Williams
Doug Williamson
Mark Wyman
Carolyn Yockey
Richard and Janet Zich 
Kurt and Wendy Zimmer

56



• 5 • 57



• 6 •

Paul Rhymer (1905-
1964) a Bloomington 
High School graduate, 
was considered one 
of the great writers 
of the 1930s “script” 
radio shows with his 

popular “Vic and Sade.” 
The show drew 7 million 

listeners and was set in what was 
XQGHQLDEO\�D�¿FWLRQDOL]HG�%ORRPLQJWRQ��
Prior to his radio days, Rhymer worked 
for the railroad, drove a cab, and was 
a reporter for the Pantagraph (where 
KH�ZDV�¿UHG�IRU�IDEULFDWLQJ�VWRULHV����$�
practical joker, Rhymer was a private 
person despite his outgoing manner. He 
is visiting from Lexington Cemetery 
in honor of the recognition by the 
Bloomington Young Men’s Club for 
“Paul Rhymer Day” in 1938.  
(Writer: Todd Wineburner)

John D. Poling (Paul 
Rhymer) This is 
Poling’s third time 
participating in the 
Evergreen Cemetery 
Walk. In 2015 he 
portrayed Pantagraph 
publisher William O. 
Davis, and in 2020 he 
brought to life Bloomington entrepreneur 
Owen Lee Cheney. Poling has appeared 
in dozens of local productions over the 
years, most recently as “Pastor Paul” in 
The Christians. He has appeared in the 
¿OPV�The Little Vagabond and American 
Criminals. Poling is also a director and 
a playwright, seeing some half-dozen of 
his short plays being produced.

John Jackson Mayes, Jr., 
(1851 -1918) known as 
J.J., was engaged in the 
photography business, 
and had a reputation of 
being an artist with a 
camera. Canadian born, 

Mayes moved to the 
United States in about 

1868, and three years later witnessed 
the Great Chicago Fire.  By 1877, 
Mayes had moved to Bloomington and 
established a photography business with 
Albert Bell, eventually venturing out on 
his own and even teaching photography 
for a short time at IWU. He later 
went into the business of training and 
breeding racehorses, raising them in a 
barn he leased on Bloomington’s west 
side. (Writer: John D. Poling)

Kevin Paul Wickart 
(J. J. Mayes) If Wick-
art looks familiar, it’s 
probably because this 
is his eighth Cemetery 
Walk appearance. He 
lives in Normal with 
his family and per-
forms with theatre companies from 
Peoria to Urbana. Wickart recently 
played “The Amazing Karnak” in the 
Station Theatre’s Ride the Cyclone and 
directed the hit play She Kills Mon-
sters for Corn Stock Theatre. Other 
recent roles include “Antonio” in The 
Tempest (CUTC), “Nostradamus” in 
Eastlight’s Something Rotten, and 
“Cléante” in Tartuffe at Heartland 
Theatre.

58



• 7 •

Samuel Noble (1834-
1913) and Mary 
(Reed) King (1842-
1928) were a force in 
the advancement of 
agriculture, and in the 

pursuit of educational 
and civic projects 

throughout Central 
Illinois. S. Noble was 
considered a “pioneer” 
farmer, particularly 
in the development of 
crop rotation practices 

and use of fertilizers. 
Mary (who had been an 

educator prior to her marriage) co-
founded the McLean County Household 
Science Association, an organization 
that gave women educational 
opportunities to learn modern methods 
of household management. Upon his 
death, S. Noble deeded a generous part 
of his estate to underwrite the Jessamine 
Withers Home for Elderly Women, 
which was advanced by Mary with both 
KHU�¿QDQFLDO�DQG�SHUVRQDO�LQYROYHPHQW��
(Writer: John Bowen)

Nathan Brandon 
Gaik (Samuel Noble 
King) studied acting 
at Illinois State Uni-
versity. He has been 
a Company member 
at Barn III Dinner 
7KHDWUH�LQ�*RRG¿HOG�
since 2012. Most recently, he played 
“Ben” in Neil Simon’s The Sunshine 
Boys at Barn III this past summer. 
Aside from Barn III, Gaik has been 
in productions at Community Players 
Theater, Heartland Theatre Company, 
and New Route Theatre. Thanks to 
Patrick for his love and support.

Connie Blick (Mary 
King) is honored to 
be featured in the 
2023 Evergreen  
Cemetery Walk, play-
ing a part in keeping 
history alive. She was 
previously featured 
in the virtual Cemetery Walk as Emily 
Howard in 2020. Blick is an acting 
graduate from the School of Theatre 
and Dance at Illinois State Universi-
ty and has a strong presence in local 
community theatre, active on stage 
and off in productions at Heartland 
Theatre Company and Community 
Players Theatre. She is co-founder of 
Nomad Theatre Company, a site-spe-
FL¿F�WKHDWUH�FRPSDQ\�WKDW�LV�TXLWH�
literally “Theatre That Moves.”

59



• 8 •

Frances Kessler (1887 – 
1975) had a passion for 
music and education. 
Music was always an 
interest for her, and she 
credited her family for 
that life-long love and 

appreciation. Each of her 
immediate family members 

Nancy Nickerson 
(Frances Kessler) 
has appeared in pro-
ductions at Heartland 
Theatre Company, 
Prairie Fire Theatre, 
Lincoln Community 
Theatre, Community 
Players, and others. This will be her 
second Cemetery Walk; her first in 
2018 as Jane Frankeberger Hendryx. 
Nickerson works part-time at Home 
Sweet Home Ministries and lives in 
Bloomington with her feline family. 

Annie Ethel Jones (1899 
– 1991) was a Black 
woman born and reared 
on a Mississippi farm, 
which her family 
owned. She married 
an older man and they 

moved to Bloomington in 
1922 to be near one of 

his daughters. Jones began working 
as a housekeeper but dreamed of 
becoming a doctor. Instead, she took a 
correspondence course to become an  
/31��ZRUNLQJ�¿UVW�DW�6W��-RVHSK¶V�
Hospital, then the McLean County Poor 
Farm working with older adults. Later, 
she also did private nursing for families 
in the community. An active community 
member, Jones was involved with the 
NAACP and her church, Wayman AME.
(Writer: Kathleen Kirk)

Darraugh Maxine 
(Annie Ethel Jones) 
is honored to be 
SHUIRUPLQJ�LQ�KHU�¿UVW�
Evergreen Cemetery 
Walk after seeing it 
many times as a junior 
high student! Darraugh 
is a graduate of Illinois Wesleyan Uni-
versity with a BFA in Acting. Previous 
credits include Much Ado About  
Nothing, A Raisin in The Sun, 
and Crowns. When not on stage, you 
FDQ�DOVR�¿QG�KHU�PDNLQJ�PDJLF�DV�
a princess performer with A Royal 
Remembrance LLC. Thank you for 
coming today!

played a musical instrument, with Kes-
sler playing the piano. She received her 
WHDFKLQJ�FHUWL¿FDWH�IURP�,618�LQ�������D�
bachelors in music education from IWU, 
and a masters in music education from 
the American Conservatory of Music in 
&KLFDJR��6KH�ZDV�DPRQJ�WKH�¿UVW�LQ�WKH�
nation to teach music appreciation and 
to integrate radio in the classroom while 
teaching in Bloomington Public Schools.  
Writer: Cristen Monson)

60



• 9 •

Richard Blue (1842-1921) 
was born in Ohio and 
came to Bloomington 
at age 9 with Judge 
Rayburn and his 
family. Blue joined the 
Union Army in 1865, 

serving as a musician in 
the 29th U.S. Colored 

Infantry.  After the Civil War, Blue 
worked as a janitor and door keeper for 
the Illinois General Assembly, was a 
barber in Bloomington, and was often 
a butler for large social events. He was 
heavily involved in community service 
and Black politics, including running for 
city alderman in Bloomington. Blue was 
also active in advancing Black literacy, 
helping start the Bloomington Literary 
and Protective Association.
(Writer: Cristen Monson)

Gregory D. Hicks 
(Richard Blue) is 
happy to return to 
this year’s Evergreen 
Cemetery Walk! You 
may remember him 
from his appearance 
in 2013 when he 
portrayed trades-
man and activist Henry L. Brown, 
or from the Virtual Cemetery Walk 
commercial in 2020! Olivia and Noah 
Hicks continue to be his reasons and 
his “why” for becoming his best self! 
He is represented by The Rock Talent 
Agency in Chicago.

Dave Krostal  (Director) has performed in over 
75 local productions including most recently It’s 
a Wonderful Life at the Station Theatre, “Bar-
dolph” in Henry V at the Illinois Shakespeare 
Festival, “Norman” in Table Manners at Heart-
land Theatre, “George” in Of Mice and Men at 
Community Players Theater, “Paul Sheldon” in 
Misery at Peoria Players, and “Titus Savage” 
in The Curious Savage at Cornstock Theater. 
Krostal has also acted and directed at the newly 
formed Nomad Theatre. He and his wife Cristen 
played circus performers Clyde and Emily Noble 
in the 2018 Evergreen Cemetery Walk, and he has also been a tour guide 
for the Walk. Krostal is a graduate of Illinois State University’s Theater 
Education program and retired from teaching in 2016. This is his fourth 
year as director for the Cemetery Walk.

61



• 10 •

Eric Hansen (Director of Volunteers), Candace Summers (Senior 
Director of Education), and Emily McCusker (Director of Youth & 
Family Education) are the lead Museum staff members responsible for 
the Evergreen Cemetery Walk. Together, they bring a combined 20+ years 
of Museum experience with them to their planning of this signature event. 
With degrees in History, Archaeology, and Political Science, all three of 
them have a passion for our local history—one that they hope to instill in 
others through Museum programs like the Evergreen Cemetery Walk.

Susan Anhalt Thetard (Artistic Director and co-
costumer) has produced the Evergreen Cemetery 
Walk for six years after retiring from University 
High School. For 19 years she was blessed to teach 
English and Theatre to great students and produce 
over 50 shows. Thetard holds a BFA from IWU 
and an MFA in costume design from ISU; you 
may have seen her work at the Illinois Shakespeare 
Festival, Community Players, or Illinois Wesleyan 
University. Thetard thanks her husband, Jon, who 
helps far beyond moral support. Working with 
Candace, Dave, and the CW team has been a great 
way to “retire.”

62



• 11 • 63



• 12 • 64



• 13 • 65



• 14 • 66



• 15 • 67



• 16 • 68



• 17 •

Research and Writing Volunteers—2023
• Leisa Barbour • John Capasso • Ruth Cobb • Kathe Conley • Madeline DeCosta  
• Mike DeVore • Denise Fries-Romack • Genevieve Fritz • Greg Koos • Carol Straka 

Volunteer Tour Guides—2023
• John Capasso • Mike DeVore • Tom Eder • Denise Fries-Romack • Neil Gridley  
• Diane Hawk • Virgil Hovar • Hannah Johnson • Jana Kiefer • Lauren Lacy  
• Amy Miller • Scott Myers • Kelly Scheffert • Scott Tongate • Christie Vellella  
• Carolyn Yockey 

%R[�2IƓFH��6WDJH�+DQGV��.LWFKHQ�0DQDJHUV��HWF�ŋ����
• Elizabeth Craig • Flora Foltz • Dean Fries-Romack • Rochelle Gridley  
• Joann Hart • Cody Hendricks • Kay Henrichs • Dianne Hollister • C.J. Ledinski  
• Rose Marsaglia • Hannah Neal • Colleen Reynolds • Susan Rush • Lynne Rice  
• John Sicks • Ruth Stewart • Kris Williams

69



• 18 • 70



• 19 • 71



• 20 • 72



• 21 • 73



• 22 • 74



• 23 • 75



• 24 •

Our guest voice for this year’s Walk, Paul Mills Rhymer, is visiting from 
Lexington Cemetery, located off P.J. Keller Highway in Lexington, Illinois. 

Lexington Cemetery, originally called 
Porteus Cemetery, was founded in 1866 
by Civil War veteran James Porteus and is 
the second oldest cemetery in Lexington. 
7KH�¿UVW�RI¿FLDO�EXULDOV�LQ�WKLV�FHPHWHU\�
were William and Elizabeth (McAboy) 
Dishon in 1866. However, it is believed 
that earlier burials took place in the area 
that would become this cemetery.

In 1888 Porteus Cemetery was renamed 
Lexington Cemetery and a cemetery 
association was formed to oversee its 
care and upkeep. In 1952 Lexington 
Township assumed management of the 
cemetery, which allowed taxes to be 
levied to support its continued care and 
maintenance. 

Marker for  
James Porteus,  

founder of the cemetery.

Paul Mills Rhymer grave, located in  
section A1, Lot 4, southeast corner

76



• 25 •

This cemetery is home to three family mausoleums, the most prominent of 
which belonged to John Jackson (J.J) Kemp, a well-to-do farmer, banker, 
and livestock and grain dealer. Built in 1892 out of Indiana limestone, the 
face of the mausoleum stands 22 feet high, and it covers a plot of land 35 by 
38 feet. Notable features include unique statuary adorning it it—two life-
sized Newfoundland dogs who are at rest. The carved dogs keep watch and 
ÀDQN�D�PDUEOH�DQJHO�SODFLQJ�ÀRZHUV�RQ�D�FURVV��7KH�GHVLJQ�LV�FRPSOHWHG�
with two large, curved wings and four marble columns. Bloomington 
monument maker H.J. Higgins & Co. created this masterpiece.

 J.J. Kemp mausoleum, Lexington Cemetery

77



• 26 • 78



• 27 • 79



• 28 • 80



• 29 • 81



• 30 • 82



• 31 • 83



• 32 • 84



85



86



 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.B.

FOR CITY OF BLOOMINGTON TOWNSHIP: October 23, 2023

WARD IMPACTED: Town of the City of Bloomington

SUBJECT: Presentation and Discussion of the Township Assessor's Report

RECOMMENDED MOTION: None; presentation only

STRATEGIC PLAN LINK:

STRATEGIC PLAN SIGNIFICANCE:

BACKGROUND: A report from the Assessor's office will be provided.  Questions, comments,
and discussion from the Board are welcome.

COMMUNITY GROUPS/INTERESTED PERSONS CONTACTED: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A

Respectfully submitted for consideration.

Prepared by: Debbie Stilwell

ATTACHMENTS:
7B 20231023 Assessor Report - Board of Review Rules.pdf

87

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2236692/7B_20231023_Assessor_Report_-_Board_of_Review_Rules.pdf


To:            Town Trustees 
From:       Steve Scudder 
Date:        October 22, 2023 
Subject:   Assessor Report 

 

 
Assessments will be published on October 27th in the Pantagraph.  That will start the 30-
day timeline to submit an assessment complaint to the County Board of Review.  So the 
deadline to get a complaint filed will be November 27th of 2023.  The County is adding a 
multiplier of 1.0262 to all assessments for the City of Bloomington Township. 
 
DUE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC, THE McLEAN COUNTY BOARD OF REVIEW 
WILL NOT HOLD IN-PERSON HEARINGS IN 2023.  All hearings with assessment reduction 
requests of less than $100,000 will be held by telephone.  Telephone hearings will be 
scheduled.  Appellants will be required to call the Board of Review at the scheduled 
time.  Hearings with assessment reductions requests greater than $100,000 may be held by 
telephone or by video conference.  All parties will be required to telephone or log-in at the 
scheduled hearing time.  Any appellant who does not call in for their scheduled hearing may result 
in the Board dismissing the assessment complaint. 
 
Our assessment date of appraisal is January 1, 2023.   
 
Attached are suggestions from the County on how to file your appeal, the Board of Review Rules 
for 2022, and a copy of the non-farm property assessment complaint form.   
 
The phone number for the Board of Review is 309-888-5132.  Email is 
boardofreview@mcleancountyil.gov  
 

 
                   Any questions or comments? 

 
 

Steven R. Scudder, Assessor 
607 S. Gridley St. Suite A, Bloomington, IL  61701 

Tel: (309) 828‐6016   Fax: (309) 829‐0663 
stevenr@assessor‐blm.com   www.assessor‐blm.com 

88



����������	
��	���������	����������		��	��	������	������� !�!	��"�	��#	��$��%	����	!��#�� �	&����	��	�#'����� �	"	���&�"� �(	)���	!��#�� �	!���	 ��	��&�"��	���	*#���	�+	���	,�"�!	�+	*�$��%-	'#�	��	!���	&��$�!�	&�"����"�	��&�	" !	�.&�" "��� �	�+	���	"&&�"�	&������(	)��	,�"�!	%" ��	��	���&	��#	'�	%���	&��&"��!	" !	� +����!(	)����	�#�!��� ��	"��	� �� !�!	��	���&	��#	# !����" !	���	&������	" !	'�	�#�����+#�	� 	��#�	&���� �"��� (		)��	�#��� �	"������� �	��	'"��!	� 	���	&"��	�����	��"��/	�"�0��	$"�#�	&����	��	1" #"��	2	�+	���	"������� �	��"�	"�	��3#���!	'�	���	���� ���	�"%(		4 	�3#"��5"��� 	+"����	6�#���&����7	%���	'�	"&&���!	%����	���	�����8��"�	�"�0��	$"�#�	��	������	����	��	����	��" 	���	"������!	$"�#�	��	'�� �	���	��"�#����	"�������� �	��	99(99	&�����(		:;<<=*)�>?	@A�B@>C@	D	4EE	:;<<=*)�>?	@A�B@>C@	=*	4BB�)�=>4E	�>F=*G4)�=>	)=	,@	C=>:�B@*@B	,H	)I@	,=4*B	=F	*@A�@J	G;:)	,@	:;,G�))@B	�>	)*�<E�C4)@	6@KC@<)	<I=)=?*4<I:7	4)	)I@	)�G@	)I@	C=G<E4�>)	�:	F�E@B(		LM������	�
	�N����O�	��O����	P��	���	���	�������	��Q		R	STUUVTWTXU	SUYUTWTXUZ[	SYVTZ	\]XÛY_U	YX̀a]̂	bVVcX]cZ	dTYV	eZUYUT	f̂YXZgT̂	hT_VŶYUc]Xi	jk���	��O������	���	����	k���
��	��	�	��O����l	���Ok����	�������li	jk�l	����	P�	��m���	Pl	P��k	P�l��	���	������n	���	�k�	�����	�����	���O�	����	P�	������i	��	������O�����	����	P�	��	����o���m�k	����	��	P�	O���������	
��	pq��r��	s����it		u����	���	O���������	��	P�	����	���m�k	���	����O�����	O�����l	�����n	�k���	�����n	P��r����O���	���	
���O�������i		R	vwxyz{z|}~	�z}~�(	�+	�����	"��	�"���	�+	�����"�	&��&������	� 	���	�"��	 ����'�����!-	+#� ���	�$�!� ��	�+	�����	�"��	&�����	���#�!	'�	�#'�����!(	F��	�."�&��-	�3#"��	+���"��	��	"&&��.��"����	���	�"���	"	�" ��	��	���&"��!	��	"	�" ��-	"	�%�8�����	��	"	�%�8�����-	"	'�8��$��	��	"	'�8��$��-	���(	4��	�3#"��	+���"��	��	!������ �!	'�	�#���!�	��"�#���� �(		R	\]W�ŶY�VT	�ZZTZZWTXU�	�
	�k���	���	�������	����������	��	�k�	����	���mkP��k���	�k��	k�N�	P���	��������	�����n	�k�	�N����O�	�k����	��O����	��������	N���������n	���������n	���	�������l	����M	���P���i	�
	�	O���������	�
	�������	����������	��	����	��	O����	�	��Or	�
	�����	���������	������l�n	�k���	O����������	�k����	P�	��O�����	��	�k�	���m����	O��������	��	�N����O�	�
	�k�	��Or	�
	�����	���������i	jk�l	�k����	P�	�������	��	�l��	���n	����n	������ln	�m�n	O������O����n	��O�����n	���	���r��	N����	��	�
	������l	�	�
	�k�	����������	l���i		R	��]U]�̂Y��Zi	jk���	O��	P�	k���
��	��	�k����m	�k�	��l��n	O��������n	���	��l	���O���	
�O����	�
	l���	�������l	�k��	�k����	P�	P���mk�	��	�k�	�������	���������i	�k���m���k�	�
	��k��	�������	����������	��l	����	P�	k���
��	
��	��������	�
	O���������i	��	��	���	��O�����l	��	��P���	�k���m���k�	��	������O����	���	���m����	
��	��Ok	�������l	��	��

�O����i		R	���̂YcZYV	]̂	�T�YV	�̂cTgi		O������	��	N������	���������	�����	������l	�	�
	�k�	����������	l���	Pl	�		�����
���	���������	O��	P�	����	k���
��i		��	����	O��
���	��	�k�	���
���	u��������	�
	���
��������		��������	���O��O�	��u���	��	P�	O���������i		���������	����	
��	P��r	
����O��m	���	�
	�������	�O���		
89



�����������	

��	����������	�������
�
������
�	��������	������
�������	���
	�������	����������		��	��
������	������	��	���	����������������	��

	

�	����	��������� !"#$�% &�'()$ *$�+,%,$#$ ,*-�./�012�34532406�78�79:5;2�345<=:79>?�012�0@A3@624�815=B<�/=49781�012�79:5;2�@9<�2A32982�80@02;2908�5/�012�34754�01422�62@48�@8�2C7<29:2�5/�C@B=2�05�012�D5@4<�5/�E2C72F�F701�012�:5;3B@790�/54;G�H12�;580�@3345347@02�2C7<29:2�78�012�324079290�8:12<=B28�5/�012�0@A3@624I8�/2<24@B�79:5;2�0@A�420=49G�JKL�MKLNOP�QROS�T�ULVWOTRXYZ��[�����\���	�������	��	�	
���	��

	

�	��������	�������	�����
�������	����������	��������������������	�]���������	��	���[�����\�����
�������������
�������	�	
�������	��

	

�	������������	��������
�����	���������������.0�78�80459>B6�42:5;;29<2<�01@0�012�0@A3@624�<78:=88�178̂124�@88288;290�F701�012�H5F98173�_8828854�34754�05�012�/7B79>�5/�@�:5;3B@790�F701�012�D5@4<�5/�E2C72FG�̀�a����	����������������	�����
�����

	

��a���	���\���	��
�������
�	
�������
�	�������������������a��	b
�	��		�
�������������c	���	�
	��	
��������	����	
���	������	����
��	���	���	���d	���e������]���������	��	���f��	�	�a���	�ghi�������	������������������������	����	��������������������������	�����	�����������������
��

�����	��

	

�	����������	��

	

�����[�����������������������	����	����	��������	��
�����j����k�	��

	

���
����������������	������	��
����	��������	������������������	������	��l��k�	��

	

�	����
����	��������	����������
	����
��������	������������	���	
��g��k�	��

	

�	����
���
	��������������	�����������������	�����������	�����������	��
���
��m��k�	��

	

	������	��
���������	��������	���	��	���	��������	������	�������	�����	�����������	���	�����������
���������������	������	�	�a��
�
������������

	

�	��b
��	
�������
�������no_E.pqr�Ds�Hno�Dt_Eu�tv�Eow.ox�y������[��	�
��������	�����	������	�����	�������	���
��	����������	�]���������	��	���k�	���\���	�������������	�
	��������	������
��	���	�������	�	��	��	�	����	������i������	���\���	��
�	\�	�
	�i������	��������������
��	���	���	��������	��l��k�\���	�
������	��	
	�����	�
	��	
�����	��	��	
	��	����������	�
	��������	���[���������
a���\������	��	
	������	
a���\�����
��
a��	���	
���	�������
	�
a��	���	
���	����
������
��������	�
�����z������	����������������	����������	�{���	����̀������
�����������	��	�����	��������	�����	�����

	

�	������������
�����������	�������	����
��	���	���	�]���������	��	��������	��	
	������	�����������f��	�	�a�
�����	�
��
����������	
���������	����
��	���	���	�]��������������

�
�������	
�����������	�
������	��������������
	
�����������	
	�������������	
	������	
�����������	�
�������	�]���������	��	������	����
��g��k�	�k���
����[

	

���������	��	
	������	����������������	�������	
	���	���	��	�����	�������	���������	����������
��

	

�	����m��|�	�	�	����	���\���	���
��	z�	
�������	������������

	

	���������������}�hhahhh�������	a���	���\���������
�����
����	��	��������
��	z�	
�����b�����	������	�
	��������	�
�������	�������	�������������	��������	������	����������z�	
����
��~��̀������\���	���	z�	
�
����	������������

	

	���������������}�hhahhh�������	a�����
��	z���	���������	�����]���������	��	�������	��������	������\�����
���������	��	�������	������������̀���
a���	�	���	a�����Eo��.Eou�Hn_H�H_��_soEr�r����s�Hno.E�orH.�_Ho�tv��tEEo�H�w_��o�tp������.po����@?��?�:��tv�Hno��t���_.pH�vtE�G����̀���������������	��
��������	������������	���������
�������	�����	������	���
�
	�����	��

�	
a���	��������	�
���������	����	�������	�������������������	���������\���	��
���	
��������
b�	�������������
�������������	���	����	�����������	���������
�a���	�]���������	��	��������	��	����	�	����	�����	�a�������
����	�
90



�������������	
���������	�
��������������������	
�
���	��������������	��	�������������������
�����	
�
���������������������� ����!"�!�"�#���$�������%� ����&��'���(���)*)+,-./�	��	��������������
��������
��'01���������
����
�2���3
�4��
�����
����2��	��	��������
�����������
���2���
�����5�64���7���8���(���,-./�9*/:�;<=:;�-)>�,-./�.:;<>:)?:;�
���������
��������
��'01���������
����
�2���3
�4����1���(���,-./�@-)>�
�����������
����
����������
��
A���4��4���4���3
�4��
��������������������B�
���C
���
���(����������D�3���������������
�������
���
����
�2���3
�4����E���F�G�
����4����H�
������D�3�����������3�������	�
��������
��������3
�4�������
�������������I��
�������������
����
����4�����A�����9:�J*-.>�*,�":K<:L�>*:;�)*=�9-K:�=9:�-M=9*.<=N�=*�->OM;=�=9:�?:.=<,<:>�,-./@-)>�:PM-@<Q:>�-;;:;;:>�K-@M:;�.:?:<K:>�-))M-@@N�,.*/�=9:��@@<)*<;�R:S-.=/:)=�*,�":K:)M:�-;�@:T<;@-=:>�UN�=9:��-./@-)>��;;:;;/:)=��-L�S-;;:>�<)�VWXVY��Z���(���)*)+,-./�=</U:.@-)>������3������������[��������E������
���(����������G
��	
��������8\\�
������
��������
���������]�
���E������
�����������
��������4��
��[��������̂�	
����������_
�4�
��D���4�������������
�
A������	�
����
������
��������
��'01���������
����
�2���3
�4�������E������
��I�	�
����I�����
��I�
���4���3���	����
��������	
���3���
�
A��������
������
��������
��'01���������
����
�2���3
�4�������E������
��������
��[��������'\̀��
��������3
�����B���
�����	�a�
��
		��3����������[���������̂	
����������_
�4�
��D���4�������
������
��������
��b�	���������������
����
�2���3
�4�������E������
��������
��
		��3���'\̀��
��[��������̂�	
����������_
�4�
��D���4�������������
�
A������	�
����
������
��������
��'0c��������
A���4��4�
���
���3
�4����5C������̂�3���	�����(���'de17�����"%�fg�R��� ����hi�jk�klmnmjlk�oip�q�oqpr�qsskssrktuv�upqwus�io�lqtx�syizlx{�|�J:�,<K:�-?.:;�*.�/*.:�-)>�9-K:�U::)�<)�,-./�M;:�,*.�=9:�S.:?:><)T�=L*�N:-.;�|�J:�@-.T:.�=9-)�=9:�.:;<>:)=<-@�S*.=<*)�*,�=9:�S-.?:@�|��-.)�-)�-))M-@�,-./�T.*;;�<)?*/:�*,�}V~����*.�/*.:Y���9<;�PM-@<,<:;�-;�-�,-./�=*�U:�.:S*.=:>�=*�=9:�gY�YRY�Y��-./��:);M;�|��-K:�-��?9:>M@:����*./�V�����!.*,<=�*.��*;;�,.*/��-./<)T��,<@:>�UN�=9:�*L):.�L<=9�=9:��:>:.-@��)?*/:��-��":=M.)�-))M-@@N�|� *=�<)?@M>:�S.*S:.=N�=9-=�<;�S.</-.<@N�M;:>�,*.�.:;<>:)=<-@�SM.S*;:;�:K:)�=9*MT9�;*/:�,-./�S.*>M?=;�/-N�U:�T.*L)�*.�,-./�-)</-@;�U.:>�*.�,:>�*)�=9:�S.*S:.=N�<)?<>:)=-@�=*�<=;�S.</-.N�M;:~�-)>�|�%::=�=9:�;=-=M=*.N�M;:�.:PM<.:/:)=;�*,�=9:�,-./�>:,<)<=<*)�*,��:?=<*)��+���*,�=9:�!.*S:.=N��-���*>:Y���
91



�
92



93



94



95



96


	City of Bloomington Township - Regular Session Agenda
	Item 5.A - Cover Page
	Item 5.A - 5A 20230925 TWP Minutes - Draft.pdf
	Item 5.B - Cover Page
	Item 5.B - 5BC 20230930 COBT Financial Audit & 20231023 Payment Request.pdf
	Item 5.C - Cover Page
	Item 6.A - Cover Page
	Item 6.A - 6A COBT Bldg Renovation Change Order 6.pdf
	Item 6.B - Cover Page
	Item 6.C - Cover Page
	Item 6.C - 6C FY2024 Tax Levy Worksheet BOUND 20231018 ~ Preliminary.pdf
	Item 7.A - Cover Page
	Item 7.A - 7A 20231023 Supervisor Report.pdf
	Item 7.B - Cover Page
	Item 7.B - 7B 20231023 Assessor Report - Board of Review Rules.pdf

